
 

 

Traffic Management 
Advisory Committee 
Agenda 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To: Councillor Stuart King (Chair) 

 
 Councillors Muhammad Ali, Jeet Bains, Felicity Flynn, Simon Hoar and 

Karen Jewitt 
 

 Reserve Members: Robert Canning, Luke Clancy, Mary Croos, Ian Parker, 
Pat Ryan and David Wood 
 

 
 
A meeting of the Traffic Management Advisory Committee, which you are hereby 
summoned to attend, will be held on Wednesday, 8 July 2020 at 6.30 pm. 
 
This meeting is being held remotely. Members of the Committee will be sent a link 
to remotely attend the meeting in due course. 
 
 
JACQUELINE HARRIS-BAKER 
Director of Law and Monitoring Officer 
London Borough of Croydon 
Bernard Weatherill House 
8 Mint Walk, Croydon CR0 1EA 

Cliona May  
020 8726 6000 x47279 
cliona.may@croydon.gov.uk 
www.croydon.gov.uk/meetings 
Tuesday, 30 June 2020 

 

PLEASE NOTE: Members of the public are welcome to remotely attend this meeting 
via a web link which will be publicised on the Council website at least 24 hours 
before the meeting. 
 
N.B This meeting will be paperless. The agenda can be accessed online at  
www.croydon.gov.uk/meetings 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

AGENDA – PART A 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence  

 To receive any apologies for absence from any members of the 
Committee. 
 

2.   Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 8) 

 To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 5 February 2020 as an 
accurate record. 
 

3.   Disclosure of Interests  

 In accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct and the statutory 
provisions of the Localism Act, Members and co-opted Members of the 
Council are reminded that it is a requirement to register disclosable 
pecuniary interests (DPIs) and gifts and hospitality to the value of which 
exceeds £50 or multiple gifts and/or instances of hospitality with a 
cumulative value of £50 or more when received from a single donor 
within a rolling twelve month period. In addition, Members and co-opted 
Members are reminded that unless their disclosable pecuniary interest is 
registered on the register of interests or is the subject of a pending 
notification to the Monitoring Officer, they are required to disclose those 
disclosable pecuniary interests at the meeting. This should be done by 
completing the Disclosure of Interest form and handing it to the 
Democratic Services representative at the start of the meeting. The 
Chair will then invite Members to make their disclosure orally at the 
commencement of Agenda item 3. Completed disclosure forms will be 
provided to the Monitoring Officer for inclusion on the Register of 
Members’ Interests. 
 

4.   Urgent Business (if any)  

 To receive notice of any business not on the agenda which in the 
opinion of the Chair, by reason of special circumstances, be considered 
as a matter of urgency. 
 

5.   Croydon (West Permit Area) CPZ - Objections to the Proposed 
Extension in Sussex Road & Sunny Nook Gardens (Pages 9 - 20) 
 

6.   Cheyne Walk Area - Objections to the Proposed Extension of the 
Free Parking Zone (Pages 21 - 32) 
 

7.   Dunheved Roads Area - Objections to the Proposed Extension of 
the North Permit Zone (Pages 33 - 44) 
 

8.   School Streets (Pages 45 - 98) 
 



 

 

9.   Exclusion of the Press and Public  

 The following motion is to be moved and seconded where it is proposed 
to exclude the press and public from the remainder of a meeting: 
 
“That, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the 
press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of 
business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt 
information falling within those paragraphs indicated in Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended.” 
 

PART B 
 
 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Traffic Management Advisory Committee 
 
 

Meeting held on Wednesday, 5 February 2020 at 6.30 pm in F10, Town Hall, Katharine Street, 
Croydon CR0 1NX 

 
MINUTES 

 
Present: Councillor Stuart King (Chair); 

 Councillors Muhammad Ali, Luke Clancy, Felicity Flynn and Karen Jewitt 
 

Apologies: Councillor Simon Hoar 

  

PART A 
 

1/20   
 

Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 18 December 2019 were agreed as an 
accurate record. 
 

2/20   
 

Disclosure of Interests 
 
 
There were none. 
 

3/20   
 

Urgent Business (if any) 
 
 
There were no items of urgent business. 
 

4/20   
 

Kynaston Road Area - Objections to the Proposed Extension of the 
Croydon CPZ (N1 Permit Area) 
 
 
The Traffic Management Advisory Committee considered the objections 
received from the public following the formal consultation process on a 
proposal to extend the existing Croydon Controlled Parking Zone (N1 Permit 
Areas) to Atlee Close, Kynaston Avenue, Kynaston Crescent, Kynaston Road 
(SE of Swain Road), Palmerston Road, Pitt Road and Sandringham Road 
with a combination of shared-use (permit/pay-byphone) bays and single 
yellow lines operating 9am to 5pm, Monday to Saturday. 
 
The Parking Design Manager explained that the report had originally been 
presented to the Committee on 16 October 2019; however, some of the 
received objections had not been included in the report. The additional eight 
objections were outlined in the report but the officers’ recommendation were 
still to approve the introduction of the CPZ.  
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



 

 
 

Ms Saunders addressed the Committee in her capacity as a local resident of 
Palmerstone Road and explained that there current issues with the parking in 
the local area were making life for residents particularly hard; there were 
commercial vehicles parked in the residential roads and left for long periods of 
time, and car dealers were using the free parking to store their vehicles. She 
expressed the importance of introducing a CPZ as soon as possible as 
residents were choosing to not leave their houses in case they lost their 
parking spaces. 
 
Mr Brown addressed the Committee in his capacity as a local resident of 
Sandringham Road and explained that he had to park a great distance from 
his property on multiple occasions due to the commercial vehicles parking in 
the area. He read a statement from a local resident, who was unable to attend 
the Committee, which highlighted the importance of introducing a CPZ in the 
area; people were using the residential streets as a car park and local 
residents felt like prisoners in their own homes.  
 
In response to the comments made by the public speakers the Parking 
Design Manager explained that those who lived in the local area could apply 
for permits and these would be limited to two per household. In his previous 
experience, introducing a CPZ would ease up the parking considerably and 
he predicted it would improve the area considerably. 
 
In response to Councillor Ali it was noted that the objectors were wrote to in 
December 2019 to state the Committee date and outline the protocol for 
speaking at the meeting; there had been no correspondence from them 
regarding addressing the Committee.  
 
In response to Councillor Mohan it was explained that the introduction of a 
CPZ could cause displacement of parking in surrounding areas, meaning 
petitions and requests from residents in these areas for the extension of the 
CPZ could be received.  
 
The Chair explained to the Committee that the report was being brought back 
to the Traffic Management Advisory Committee for consideration as the 
objections were not included in the original report, and it was not because the 
officers had changed their recommendations for approval. He noted that in his 
opinion the new objections did not raise new concerns and as there was a 
strong support for the scheme, he would be agreeing with the officers 
recommendations for approval. He added that he had discussed the scheme 
with the Ward Councillors who were in support.  
 
RESOLVED – That the Traffic Management Advisory Committee agreed to 
recommend to the Acting Cabinet Member for Environment, Transport and 
Regeneration (job share) that they: 
 

1) Rescind the Traffic Management Advisory Committee’s decision 

Kynaston Road Area – objections to the proposed extension of the 

Croydon CPZ (N1 Permit Area), Item 8 dated 16 October 2019. 

 

Page 6



 

 
 

2) Replace the Traffic Management Advisory decision Kynaston Road 

Area Item 8 dated 16 October 2019 with the following decision: 

 
“1.2.1 Consider the objections, contained in this Report, to extending 

the existing Croydon Controlled Parking Zone ( N1 Permit 
Areas) to Atlee Close, Kynaston Avenue, Kynaston Crescent, 
Kynaston Road (SE of Swain Road junction), Palmerston Road, 
Pitt Road and Sandringham Road with a combination of Shared-
Use (Permit/Pay-by-phone) bays and single yellow lines 
operating 9am to 5pm, Monday to Saturday. 

 
1.2.2  Agree for the reasons detailed in this report to extend the 

Croydon Controlled Parking Zone into the above roads as 
shown in drawing no. PD- 0402/1-3. 

 
1.2.3  Inform the objectors and supporters of the above decision.” 

 
5/20   
 

Exclusion of the Press and Public 
 
 
This was not required. 
 
 
 
 

The meeting ended at 6.46 pm 
 

 
Signed:   

Date:   

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

REPORT TO: TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE  

8 July 2020 

SUBJECT: CROYDON (WEST PERMIT AREA) CPZ – OBJECTIONS 
TO THE PROPOSED EXTENSION IN SUSSEX 

ROAD AND SUNNY NOOK GARDENS 

LEAD OFFICER: Shifa Mustafa, Executive Director of Place 

CABINET 
MEMBER: 

Councillor Stuart King, Cabinet Member for 
Environment, Transport and Regeneration (Job 

Share)   

WARDS: South Croydon 

CORPORATE PRIORITY/POLICY CONTEXT:  

          This report is in line with objectives to improve the safety and reduce 
obstructive parking on the Borough’s roads as detailed in: 

• Croydon Local Plan – Feb 2018 
• Local Implementation Plan 3; Section 2 Croydon Transport Objectives  
• Croydon’s Community Strategy; Priority Areas 1, 2, 3 & 4 
• The Croydon Plan 2nd Deposit; T4, T7, T35, T36, T42 and T43 
• Croydon Corporate Plan 2015 – 18 
• Croydon Parking Policy 2019 – 22; Section 2 
• www.croydonobservatory.org/strategies/ 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

These proposals can be contained within available budget.  

FORWARD PLAN KEY DECISION REFERENCE NO.:  Not a Key Decision 

1. RECOMMENDATIONS 
That the Traffic Management Advisory Committee recommend to the Cabinet 
Member for Environment, Transport and Regeneration that the Cabinet 
Member: 

1.1 Consider the responses received to the formal consultation to extending the 
existing Croydon Controlled Parking Zone (West Permit Zone) into Sussex Road 
with a combination of Shared-Use Permit/Pay via Ring-Go (8 hours maximum stay) 
and single yellow lines operating from 9am to 5pm, Monday to Saturday, and to 
Sunny Nook Gardens for Permits only operating 9am to 5pm, Monday to Saturday. 

1.2 Agree for the reasons detailed in this report to extend the Croydon Controlled 
Parking Zone (West Permit Zone) into Sussex Road in it’s entirety as well as into 
Sunny Nook Gardens as shown on drawing number PD 407. 

1.3     Inform the objectors and supporters of the above decision. 
 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



 

 
2. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
2.1 The purpose of this report is to consider objections received from the public following 

the formal consultation process on a proposal to extend the existing Croydon 
Controlled Parking Zone (West Permit Zone) to Sussex Road with a combination of 
Shared-Use Permit/Pay via Ring-Go (8 hours maximum stay) bays and single yellow 
lines operating from 9am to 5pm, Monday to Saturday, and to Sunny Nook Gardens 
with Permit parking only, operating during the same hours. 

 
2.2 The outcome of the informal consultation was reported to this Committee at its 

meeting on 24 July 2019, where it was agreed to proceed to a formal consultation 
on the making of Traffic Management Orders to introduce the proposed scheme. 

 
2.3 On 12 March 2020 and pursuant to the delegation from the Leader dated 6 June 

2016, the Executive Director Place, following consultation with the Cabinet Member 
for Environment, Transport and Regeneration (job share) determined that it was 
appropriate to refer consideration of the matters detailed paragraph 2.1 above to the 
Traffic Management Advisory Committee for onward recommendation and 
determination to the Cabinet Member for Environment, Transport and Regeneration 
(job share). 

 
 
3. BACKGROUND 

 
3.1 Following petitions from Bynes Road and Churchill Road in 2017 residents were 

consulted on possibly extending existing Controlled Parking Zones into Sunny Nook 
Gardens, Selsdon Road, Selsdon Avenue, Sussex Road, Haling Road, Helder 
Street, Jarvis Road, Newark Road, Mansfield Road, Chelsham Road, Crunden 
Road, Brighton Road, Churchill Road, Wyche Grove, Purley Road, Sanderstead 
Road, Rolleston Road, and the uncontrolled section of Bynes Road. 

 
3.2 On 18 July 2019 the Committee agreed a report (minute A5/19 refers) to extend the 

Bynes Road CPZ into the remaining uncontrolled section of Bynes Road and to 
extend the Croydon  CPZ (West Permit Zone) into Sunny Nook Gardens and Sussex 
Road in order to balance the supply and demand of on street parking in these 
streets. 

 
3.3 Following detailed design, occupiers in Sussex Road, Sunny Nook Gardens, and 

part of Selsdon Road were formally consulted (public notice stage) on a proposal 
with 9am to 5pm, Monday to Saturday parking controls, illustrated on drawing 
number PD 407.  Residents/businesses within this area were written to on 13 
January 2020 with a copy of the relevant drawing and the public notice, and invited 
to submit objections to/comments on the scheme before Wednesday 12 February 
2020.  It is expected that the introduction of this scheme would help balance parking 
demand as well as improve access for the two bus routes which run regular services 
through Sussex Road. 

 
 

4. OBJECTIONS AND RESPONSES 
 
4.1 A total of 9 objections were received to the proposal during the consultation 

period. 
 

Page 10



 

Objection 1 
4.2 The first objection (from a resident of Sussex Road) was raised on the grounds 

that 
• Residents did not know for certain that the parking charges system was going 

to change to an emissions based system.  The informal consultation should 
be rerun because of this. 

• The objector states that he responded positively to the informal consultation.  
The final vote from Sussex Road was 17 in favour and 15 against.  He states 
that this positive response was subject to several conditions, none of which 
were implemented.  He believes that the final tally should be 16 to 16 and 
that the scheme should not have proceeded to the formal consultation phase. 

4.2.1 Response 
 Residents were told about the possibility of the parking charges changing (and 
the proposed associated costs) at the time of the informal consultation and were 
able to vote based on this information.  
 

 Objection 2 & 3   
4.3 The second and third objections (from two businesses on Sussex Road) were 

raised on the grounds that 

• The proposed CPZ would damage their businesses and result in job losses 

• The cost of parking will have an adverse effect on the businesses and on the 
clients of the businesses 

• Even if they pay for permits they will not be guaranteed a parking space 

• They believe that there will be a reduction in parking spaces by a third 

• They believe that the scheme will not alleviate parking problems experienced 
by residents 

• Introducing the scheme will push parking onto other roads 
 

4.3.1 Response 
 The immediate area is well serviced by public transport with opportunities for staff 
and clients to travel by alternative means.  Parking charges start from 30p for 30 
minutes, and increase on a linear scale.  Although nobody can ever be 
guaranteed a parking space, anecdotal evidence from other schemes suggests 
that parking volumes on the road will drop significantly.  There will be no 
reduction in the number of parking spaces on the road.  Parking bays will not be 
subdivided and only one small section of single yellow line (across a driveway) is 
proposed.  It is likely that introducing the scheme could transfer some parking 
problems onto neighbouring uncontrolled streets.  This happens with all 
controlled parking zones and the only way to avoid this happening completely 
would be to remove all CPZs in the Borough. 

 
Objection 4 

4.4 The fourth objection (from a resident of Sussex Road) was raised on the grounds 
that 

• He feels like he is being penalised for having a car, being able to afford 
neither the band 7 permit charge, nor a new electric car 

Page 11



 

• He regularly has notes left on his car from residents of Rockhampton Road 
and Hurst Way when he has had to park elsewhere as spaces on Sussex 
Road are taken by the local garage, bus drivers and commuters using South 
Croydon station. 

4.4.1  Response 
 Residents were made aware of the proposed new permit prices when the 
informal consultation documents were distributed.  A majority of respondents 
from Sussex Road voted to implement the proposed scheme.   If this scheme 
proceeds, he is not obliged to purchase a permit, he could park on uncontrolled 
streets. 

 
 Objection 5 

4.5 The fifth objection has been raised on the grounds that: 

• Marking all of Sussex Road a CPZ would not improve the parking situation 
due to the number of cars kept by residents of the road. 

• He believes that residents of St. Paul’s Road will use Sussex Road as an 
overflow area. 

• He does not want his wife to have to hunt for parking spaces and walk long 
distances in the dark. 

• He has a permit for the South Permit Zone and wants this section of Sussex 
Road to remain in that part of the CPZ as it allows him to park closer to East 
Croydon station and to the tram line. 

• Transferring to the West Permit Zone would adversely affect his commute. 
4.5.1 Response 

 Anecdotal evidence from the introduction of previous schemes suggest that there 
would be a significant improvement to the parking problems experienced by local 
residents, although nobody is ever guaranteed a parking space.  The area is well 
served by public transport.  This provides an alternative if residents find it 
especially difficult to park.  Residents’ permits are provided to allow them to park 
closer to their home, they are not provided to assist commuters. 
 

 Objection 6 
4.9 The sixth objection (from a resident of Selsdon Road) has been raised on the 

grounds that: 

• Permits are too expensive 
4.9.1 Response 

 A majority of residents from Sussex Road voted for the scheme.  A number of 
Selsdon Road addresses are being included in the zone so that they may 
purchase a permit if they wish.  Those who choose not to pay have the option of 
the public transport or parking in neighbouring uncontrolled roads. 

 
 Objection 7 
4.6 The seventh objection (from a resident of Sussex Road) has been raised on the 

grounds that: 

• Sussex Road would be better placed within the South Permit Area rather than 
the West Permit Area. 

Page 12



 

• If Sussex Road was placed in the South Permit Area the underused parking 
bays at the southern end of Moreton Road could act as a useful overflow for 
Sussex Road. 

4.6.1 Response 
Officers feel that it makes sense for Sussex Road to be introduced in the West 
Permit Area which already adjoins the southern end of the road.  Officers are 
aware of the underused parking bays at the southern end of Moreton Road.  In 
the event that the parking bays on Sussex Road are oversubscribed during 
operational hours it is expected that future plans may be developed to move this 
part of Moreton Road into the West Permit Area. 
  
Objection 8 

4.7 The eighth objection (from a resident of Selsdon Road) has been raised on the 
grounds that: 

• They are un able to park on Selsdon Road so usually have to park on Sussex 
Road, Carlton Road, and Carlton Avenue 

• The new flats on Selsdon Road will make it more difficult to park 

• The Council should not allow flats to be built without parking facilities 

• The permit scheme on Sussex Road will mean that the residents of 196 – 
230 Selsdon Road will have nowhere to park. 

4.7.1 Response 
 Residents of the existing properties at 196 – 230 Selsdon Road were consulted 
on these scheme and would be eligible for permits should the scheme proceed.  
The residents of the new development at 210 – 216 Selsdon Road will not be 
eligible for permits due to planning restrictions places on this development.  Other 
consultees (including this objector) were informed about this.  It is expected 
(based on the introduction of other controlled parking schemes) that if this 
scheme were to proceed it would improve parking during the controlled hours. 

 
Objection 9 

4.8 The ninth objection (from a resident of Sussex Road) has been raised on the 
grounds that: 

• The proposed hours of operation will not resolve the parking situation in 
Sussex Road. 

• Residents will be paying for a permit which is of no use to them as they will 
still be unable to park in the area. 

4.8.1 Response 
 Anecdotal evidence suggests that the scheme will improve the parking situation 
on the street.  If, after implementation, residents feel like changes are needed to 
the hours of operation, they are welcome to petition the Council to introduce 
changes to the scheme. 

  
4.18 It is recommended to proceed with this scheme, as designed. 
 
 
 
 

Page 13



 

5 CONSULTATION 
 
5.1 The purpose of this report is to consider comments and objections from the public 

following the giving of public notice of the proposals. Once the notices were 
published, the public had up to 21 days to respond. 

 
5.2 The legal process requires that formal consultation takes place in the form of Public 

Notices published in the London Gazette and a local paper (Croydon Guardian).  
Although it is not a legal requirement, this Council also fixes notices to lamp columns 
in the vicinity of the proposed schemes to inform as many people as possible of the 
proposals. 

 
5.3 Organisations such as the Fire Brigade, the Cycling Council for Great Britain, The 

Pedestrian Association, Age UK and bus operators are consulted separately at the 
same time as the public notice.  Other organisations are also consulted, depending 
on the relevance of the proposal.  No comments were received from any of these 
organisations. 

 
 
6. FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 

 
There is a revenue budget of £50k for CPZ undertakings and £50k for Footway 
Parking and Disabled Bays, from which these commitments if approved will be 
funded.  Attached to the papers of this meeting is a summary of the overall 
financial impact of this and other applications for approval at this meeting.  If all 
applications were approved there would remain £50k un-allocated to be utilised in 
2020/2021. 

6.1 Revenue and Capital consequences of report recommendations  

 
 

 Current    
Financial 

Year 

 M.T.F.S – 3 year Forecast 

  2020/21  2021/22  2022/23  2023/24 
           £’000  £’000  £’000  £’000 
         Revenue Budget     
available 

        

Expenditure  100  0  0  0 

Income  0  0  0  0 

Effect of Decision 
from Report 

        

Expenditure  14  0  0  0 

Income  0  0  0  0 

         Remaining Budget 
 

 86  0  0  0 
         Capital Budget 
available 

        

Expenditure  0  0  0  0 

Effect of Decision 
from report 

        

Expenditure  0  0  0  0 

         Remaining Budget 
 

 0  0  0  0 

Page 14



 

 
 

6.2 The effect of the decision 
6.2.1 The cost of introducing controlled parking into the South Croydon Area has 

been estimated at £14,400.  This includes the supply and installation of signs, 
lines and a contribution towards the legal costs. 

6.2.2 These costs can be contained within the available revenue budgets for 2020/21.  
 
6.3 Risks 
6.3.1 The current method of introducing parking controls is very efficient with the 

design and legal work being carried out within the department. The marking of 
the bays and the supply and installation of signs and posts is carried out using 
the new Highways Contract and the rates are lower than if the schemes were 
introduced under separate contractual arrangements. 

6.4 Options 
6.4.1  An alternative option is to introduce a Residents Only parking scheme. Virtually 

all permit schemes in the Borough are shared-use with Pay & Display users and 
this offers the greatest flexibility for drivers who may be visitors to residents and 
businesses in the area or the minority of commuters who are willing to pay for all 
day parking. 

6.5 Savings/ future efficiencies 
6.5.1 If controlled parking is introduced future income will be generated from               

 paid for parking (Pay by Phone), together with enforcement of these controls 
through the issue of Penalty Charge Notices. CPZ schemes have typically been 
proven to be self-financing usually within 4 years of introduction. 

 
6.6 Approved by: Felicia Wright Head of Finance - Place 
 
 
7 COMMENTS OF COUNCIL SOLICITOR AND MONITORING OFFICER  
 
7.1 Sections 6, 45, 46, 47, 49, 124 and Part IV of Schedule 9 of the Road Traffic 

Regulation Act 1984 (RTRA) provides the Council with the power to implement the 
changes proposed in this report. This legislation gives a local authority the power to 
make Traffic Management Orders (TMO) to control parking by designating on-street 
parking places, charging for their use and imposing waiting and loading restrictions 
on vehicles of all or certain classes at all times or otherwise.  

 
7.2 In making such Orders, the Council must follow the procedures set out at Schedule 

9, Part III of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 and detailed in the Local 
Authorities Traffic Orders (Procedure)(England and Wales) Regulations 1996 (the 
1996 Regulations). The said Regulations, prescribe inter alia, specific publication, 
consultation and notification requirements that must be strictly observed. It is 
incumbent on the Council to take account of any representations made during the 
consultation stage and any material objections received to the making of the Order, 
must be reported back to the decision maker before the Order is made. 

 
7.3 By virtue of section 122 of the RTRA, the Council must exercise its powers under 

that Act so as to secure the expeditious, convenient and safe movement of vehicular 

Page 15



 

and other traffic including pedestrians, and the provision of suitable and adequate 
parking facilities on and off the highway. These powers must be exercised so far as 
practicable having regard to the following matters:- 

• the desirability of securing and maintaining reasonable access to premises. 

• the effect on the amenities of any locality affected including the regulation and 
restriction of heavy commercial traffic so as to preserve or improve amenity. 

• the national air quality strategy. 

• the importance of facilitating the passage of public service vehicles and of 
securing the safety and convenience of persons using or desiring to use such 
vehicles. 

• any other matters appearing to the Council to be relevant. 
 
7.4 Recent High Court judgment confirms that the Council must have proper regard to 

the matters set out at s 122(1) and (2) and specifically document its analysis of all 
relevant section 122 considerations when reaching any decision. 

 
7.5   Approved by: Sandra Herbert, Head of Litigation and Corporate Law on behalf of 

the Director of Law and Governance and Deputy Monitoring Officer. 
 
 
8. HUMAN RESOURCES IMPACT 
 
8.1 Enforcement of extended parking controls will require increased enforcement duties 

by Civil Enforcement Officers.  It is anticipated that this additional enforcement can 
be undertaken using existing resources. 

 
8.2 Approved by: Jennifer Sankar, Head of Human Resources. 
 
 
9. EQUALITIES IMPACT  
 
9.1 An initial Equalities Impact Assessment (EqIA) has been carried out and it is 

considered that a Full EqIA is not required. 
 
 
10. ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 
 
10.1 There are no environmental impacts arising from this report. 
 
 
11. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPACT  
 
11.1    There are no crime and disorder reduction impacts from this report. 
 
 
12. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

12.1 The recommendation is not to proceed with the proposed scheme as there isn’t 
widespread support for the scheme among residents of Bynes Road. 

 
 

Page 16



 

 
13. OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED  
 
13.1 An alternative option is to introduce the parking controls.  Residents broadly do not 

support the proposal, clearly they are happy with the current availability of parking 
spaces. 

    
 
REPORT AUTHORS:   Teresa O’Regan – Traffic Engineer 
   Highway Improvements, Parking Design 
   020 8762 6000 (Ext. 88260) 
   David Wakeling, Parking Design Manager 
   Highway Improvements, Parking Design 
   020 8762600 (ext. 88229) 
   07771 977 158 
CONTACT OFFICER:   David Wakeling, Parking Design Manager, 

Highway Improvements, Parking Design 
   020 8726 6000 (Ext. 88229) 
   07771 977 158 
BACKGROUND PAPERS – LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972  

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Jarvis Road

Newark Road

S
elsd

on
 A

ve
n

ue
Helder Street

Haling Road

Mansfield Road

R
O

A
D

S
usse

x R
oa

d

Gardens
Sunny Nook

HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENTS - PARKING DESIGN

Proposed Extension of Croydon (West Permit Area) CPZ
SOUTH CROYDON AREA

PLACE DEPARTMENT
SHIFA MUSTAFA  -  EXECUTIVE  DIRECTOR
BERNARD WEATHERILL HOUSE
CROYDON
CR0 1EA

Scale.

Date.

PD 398a

DrawnNTS
Drawing Ref.

TOR
Rev. 00

JUNE 2019

DWChecked

Proposed Extension to Croydon (West Permit Area CPZ)

Existing Croydon (West Permit Area) CPZ

Sussex Road Properties
currently in South Permit Area
will move to West Permit Area.

Croydon (South Permit Area) CPZ Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
REPORT TO: TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE  

8 July 2020 

SUBJECT: CHEYNE WALK AREA – OBJECTIONS TO THE PROPOSED 
EXTENSION OF THE FREE PARKING ZONE 

LEAD OFFICER: Shifa Mustafa, Executive Director of Place 

CABINET 
MEMBER: 

Councillor Stuart King, Cabinet Member for 
Environment, Transport and Regeneration (Job 

Share)   

WARDS: Addiscombe East 

CORPORATE PRIORITY/POLICY CONTEXT:  

          This report is in line with objectives to improve the safety and reduce 
obstructive parking on the Borough’s roads as detailed in: 

• Croydon Local Plan – Feb 2018 
• Local Implementation Plan 3; Section 2 Croydon Transport Objectives  
• Croydon’s Community Strategy; Priority Areas 1, 2, 3 & 4 
• The Croydon Plan 2nd Deposit; T4, T7, T35, T36, T42 and T43 
• Croydon Corporate Plan 2015 – 18 
• Croydon Parking Policy 2019 – 22; Section 2 
• www.croydonobservatory.org/strategies/ 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

These proposals can be contained within available budget.  

FORWARD PLAN KEY DECISION REFERENCE NO.:  Not a Key Decision 

1. RECOMMENDATIONS 
That the Traffic Management Advisory Committee recommend to the Cabinet 
Member for Environment, Transport and Regeneration that the Cabinet 
Member: 

1.1 Consider the response received to the formal consultation to extending the existing 
Croydon Controlled Parking Zone (free parking area) into Cheyne Walk, Carlisle 
Road, Annandale Road and Fryston Avenue with a combination of free unlimited 
time parking bays and yellow line waiting restrictions between the bays operating 
9am to 5pm, Monday to Friday. 
 

1.2 Agree for the reasons detailed in this report to extend the Croydon Controlled 
Parking Zone (free parking area) into the above area except Fryston Avenue as 
shown on drawing number PD - 420. 

1.3     Inform the objector of the above decision. 
 

Page 21

Agenda Item 6



 

2. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
2.1 The purpose of this report is to consider objections received from the public following 

the formal consultation process on a proposal to extend the existing Croydon 
Controlled Parking Zone (free parking area) into Cheyne Walk, Carlyle Road, 
Annandale Road and Fryston Avenue. 

 
2.2 The outcome of the informal consultation was reported to the Executive Director 

of Place on 6 December 2019, where it was agreed to proceed to a formal 
consultation on the making of Traffic Management Orders to introduce the 
proposed scheme. 

 
2.3 On 12 March 2020 and pursuant to the delegation from the Leader dated 6 June 

2016, the Executive Director Place, following consultation with the Cabinet Member 
for Environment, Transport and Regeneration (job share) determined that it was 
appropriate to refer consideration of the matters detailed paragraph 2.1 above to the 
Traffic Management Advisory Committee for onward recommendation and 
determination to the Cabinet Member for Environment, Transport and Regeneration 
(job share) 

 
 
3. BACKGROUND 

 
3.1 A petition signed by residents from a majority of households in Cheyne Walk was 

received in June 2018 requesting that the Council introduce parking controls with 
a combination of free parking bays and yellow line waiting restrictions operating 
9am to 5pm, Monday to Friday.  The petition instigated the informal consultation 
process.   

 
3.2 Currently residents in the Cheyne Walk area suffer from commuter parking as 

this is area is close to the Sandilands Tramstop and bus routes to Central 
Croydon.  Commuter vehicles can be parked close to junctions and driveways 
causing access and safety concerns.  Nearby roads have free parking bays 
located away from junctions and driveways with single yellow lines mostly 
operating Monday to Friday.  These parking schemes allow commuters to park in 
a managed way acting as a buffer between paid for parking bays and unrestricted 
parking. 

 
3.3 The informal consultation on a possible extension of the free parking scheme was 

carried out from 10 September 2019 to 4 October 2019 and involved a consultation 
newsletter and plan, being distributed to all properties in the consultation boundary. A 
questionnaire was also included for residents to submit their views to the proposal, see 
appendix 1. 

3.4 77 properties were consulted with 45 properties responding giving a response rate of 
58%. The feedback to the informal consultation can be seen in Table 1 below, a 
summary identifies 49% in support and 51% object to the proposal, however the 
majority of objection is from Fryston Avenue and would likely be subject to displaced 
parking should the proposed scheme be introduced excluding Fryston Avenue. 

  

 

Page 22



 

 Table 1 Feedback to the informal consultation. 

Road Properties Responded Support Object 

Annandale Road 12 7 3 4 

Carlyle Road 22 12 7 5 

Cheyne Walk 16 11 9 2 

Fryston Avenue 23 13 3 10 

Harriet Gardens 4 2 0 2 

Totals 77 45 22 23 

 
3.5 It was agreed to introduce parking controls in this area, including Fryston Avenue 

where a negative response was received, subject to formal consultation.  The public 
notice was published on 6 February and all affected residents were written to. 

 
3.6 Two objections were received and an e-mail of support during the 21 day 

consultation period. 
 

 
4. OBJECTIONS, RESPONSE & SUPPORT 

 
4.1 Objection 1 
4.1.1 A resident of Fryston Avenue decided to undertake their own survey to determine 

whether the views of residents had changed since the original consultation and 
public notice.  They sent the following letter to households in Fryston Avenue 
Annandale Road and Carlyle Road: 
 
Proposal by Croydon Council for a controlled parking zone in Cheyne Walk, 
Annandale Road, Carlyle Road and Fryston Avenue 
Dear neighbour 
 
You will have received a letter dated 30th January from Croydon Council’s 
Parking Design Manager (David Wakeling) indicating their intention to 
recommend installation of their proposal. I have been in communication with 
David Wakeling and he has agreed to my proposal to send this letter to you all. 
Firstly let me show you the response to Croydon Council’s initial letter of 10th 
September: As Table 1 above 
 
It is clear that the residents of Cheyne Walk are strongly in favour of the proposal, 
and indeed they started this process by raising a petition to the Council. Carlyle 
Road are marginally in favour, Annandale Road marginally against, and Fryston 
Avenue strongly against. Harriet Gardens have now been removed from the 
proposal. David Wakeling has indicated that it would be possible to exclude any 
of the roads in the proposal according to the wishes of the residents of that road. 
This means that Cheyne Walk could have the scheme introduced in their road, 
and any other road could be included. 
 

Page 23



 

David has pointed out that if the scheme is introduced in Cheyne Walk, there may 
be an increased spill-over of commuter parking in adjoining roads because of the 
limitation of parking space in Cheyne Walk. I therefore felt it right that the 
residents of the other three roads should be given the opportunity of 
reconsidering their vote on the assumption that the scheme will be introduced in 
Cheyne Walk. David has agreed that the response to this new vote will be 
presented to the Council and taken into account in their final decision. 
 
You may consider that the scheme will have little effect on the problem of 
commuter parking, and will create a greater problem that visitors to our houses 
will be unable to park their cars anywhere in our roads because all marked 
spaces will be occupied and yellow lines will prevent parking even across our 
own driveways. 
 
Please therefore vote YES/NO for the introduction of the proposed scheme only 
in your own road. You can reply to me by email to ***** or by writing YES or NO 
at the foot of this page and dropping it into my letterbox at ****. I must receive all 
replies by Sunday 8th March.  PLEASE also write your house number and 
street below or in your email! 

4.1.2 The results of this resident’s consultation are as follows: 
 
Road Properties Responded Support Object 

Annandale Road 12 5 2 3 

Carlyle Road 22 7 3 4 

Fryston Avenue 23 12 1 11 

4.1.3 There is mention in the correspondence with this resident that some respondents 
felt that free parking would be a precursor to the introduction of a residents permit 
scheme and would be seen as a money making scheme. 

4.2 Response 1 
4.2.2 Although consultations organised by residents have to be treated with caution it is 

clear that there is little support for parking controls in Fryston Avenue despite the 
knowledge that controls could be introduced in the surrounding roads. 

4.2.3 There are no proposals to extend the Permit / Paid for scheme into this area as 
the majority of residents have ample off-street parking and such a scheme is 
likely to result in a displacement of parking into nearby unrestricted roads.  It is 
worth noting that controlled parking with free parking bays have been present in 
many nearby roads since the 1990s.  The purpose of the proposals is to manage 
the commuter parking by ensuring driveways and junctions are accessible and 
road safety is maintained rather than increasing revenue for the Council. 

4.3 Objection 2 
4.3.1 A resident of Carlyle Road is objecting to the proposals on the following grounds: 

• The loss of 10 parking spaces in the road will add to pressure on parking in 
the surrounding area. 

• Road markings and signs will urbanise the area adversely affecting the 

Page 24



 

suburban feel of the area. 

• Reduced parking in the road will result in the speed of traffic increasing. 
 

4.4 Response 
4.4.1 Our calculations show that potentially up to 6 parking spaces will be lost in 

Carlyle Road but these are in areas which currently could cause issues for 
residents.  It is calculated that the majority of vehicles currently parking in the 
area will still be able to park within the marked bays with minimal displacement to 
the surrounding area. 

4.4.2 Although yellow lines and marked bays will be necessary for the scheme signage 
will be minimised with only zone entry signs required.  There has been parking 
controls with similar markings in the surrounding area, including the Whitgift 
estate, with minimal impact on the ‘feel’ of the area. 

4.4.3 It is very unlikely that a slight reduction in parked vehicles in Carlyle Road will 
result in the increase in the speed of traffic.  This road experiences a very low 
flow of traffic and is not on a particular route to avoid any congestion in the area. 

4.5 Support 
4.5.1 An e-mail of support has been received from a resident of Annandale Road who 

currently experiences issues with commuters. 
4.6 Conclusion 
4.6.1 Due to the objections mainly from Fryston Avenue and results of both the 

Council’s and the residents consultations it is proposed to extend parking controls 
only in Cheyne Walk, Carlyle Road and Annandale Road and to monitor parking 
issues and possible complaints / requests in surround roads for future review. 
 
 

5 CONSULTATION 
 
5.1 The purpose of this report is to consider comments and objections from the public 

following the giving of public notice of the proposals. Once the notices were 
published, the public had up to 21 days to respond. 

 
5.2 The legal process requires that formal consultation takes place in the form of Public 

Notices published in the London Gazette and a local paper (Croydon Guardian).  
Although it is not a legal requirement, this Council also fixes notices to lamp columns 
in the vicinity of the proposed schemes to inform as many people as possible of the 
proposals. 

 
5.3 Organisations such as the Fire Brigade, the Cycling Council for Great Britain, The 

Pedestrian Association, Age UK and bus operators are consulted separately at the 
same time as the public notice.  Other organisations are also consulted, depending 
on the relevance of the proposal.  No comments were received from any of these 
organisations. 

 
There is a revenue budget of £50k for CPZ undertakings and £50k for Footway 
Parking and Disabled Bays, from which these commitments if approved will be 
funded. 
 
 

Page 25



 

6. FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
  

There is a revenue budget of £50k for CPZ undertakings and £50k for Footway 
Parking and Disabled Bays, from which these commitments if approved will be 
funded.  Attached to the papers of this meeting is a summary of the overall 
financial impact of this and other applications for approval at this meeting.  If all 
applications were approved there would remain £50k un-allocated to be utilised in 
2020/2021. 
 

6.1 Revenue and Capital consequences of report recommendations  

 
 

6.2 The effect of the decision  
6.2.1 The cost of introducing parking controls in the Cheyne Walk area has been 

estimated at £8,000.  This includes the supply and installation of signs, lines and 
a contribution towards the legal costs. 

6.2.2 These costs can be contained within the available revenue budgets for 2020/21.  
6.3 Risks 
6.3.1 The current method of introducing parking controls is very efficient with the 

design and legal work being carried out within the department. The marking of the 
bays and the supply and installation of signs and posts is carried out using the 
new Highways Contract and the rates are lower than if the schemes were 
introduced under separate contractual arrangements 

 
 

 Current    
Financial 

Year 

 M.T.F.S – 3 year Forecast 

  2020/21  2021/22  2022/23  2023/24 
           £’000  £’000  £’000  £’000 
         Revenue Budget     
available 

        

Expenditure  50  0  0  0 

Income  0  0  0  0 

Effect of Decision 
from Report 

        

Expenditure  8  0  0  0 

Income  0  0  0  0 

         Remaining Budget 
 

 92  0  0  0 

         Capital Budget 
available 

        

Expenditure  0  0  0  0 

Effect of Decision 
from report 

        

Expenditure  0  0  0  0 

         Remaining Budget 
 

 0  0  0  0 

Page 26



 

6.4 Options 
6.4.1  The alternative option would be not to introduce controls in this area which will 

result in continued parking problems for residents..  
6.5 Savings/ future efficiencies 
6.5.1 Introducing parking controls in this area would result in potential income from 

Penalty Charge Notices. 
 
6.6 Approved by: Felicia Wright, Head of Finance Place 
 
 
7 COMMENTS OF COUNCIL SOLICITOR AND MONITORING OFFICER  
 
7.1 Sections 6, 45, 46, 47, 49, 124 and Part IV of Schedule 9 of the Road Traffic 

Regulation Act 1984 (RTRA) provides the Council with the power to implement the 
changes proposed in this report. This legislation gives a local authority the power to 
make Traffic Management Orders (TMO) to control parking by designating on-street 
parking places, charging for their use and imposing waiting and loading restrictions 
on vehicles of all or certain classes at all times or otherwise.  

 
7.2 In making such Orders, the Council must follow the procedures set out at Schedule 

9, Part III of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 and detailed in the Local 
Authorities Traffic Orders (Procedure)(England and Wales) Regulations 1996 (the 
1996 Regulations). The said Regulations, prescribe inter alia, specific publication, 
consultation and notification requirements that must be strictly observed. It is 
incumbent on the Council to take account of any representations made during the 
consultation stage and any material objections received to the making of the Order, 
must be reported back to the decision maker before the Order is made. 

 
7.3 By virtue of section 122 of the RTRA, the Council must exercise its powers under 

that Act so as to secure the expeditious, convenient and safe movement of vehicular 
and other traffic including pedestrians, and the provision of suitable and adequate 
parking facilities on and off the highway. These powers must be exercised so far as 
practicable having regard to the following matters:- 
•  the desirability of securing and maintaining reasonable access to premises. 
•  the effect on the amenities of any locality affected including the regulation and 

restriction of heavy commercial traffic so as to preserve or improve amenity. 
•  the national air quality strategy. 
•  the importance of facilitating the passage of public service vehicles and of 

securing the safety and convenience of persons using or desiring to use such 
vehicles. 

•  any other matters appearing to the Council to be relevant. 
 
7.4 Recent High Court judgment confirms that the Council must have proper regard to 

the matters set out at s 122(1) and (2) and specifically document its analysis of all 
relevant section 122 considerations when reaching any decision. 

 
7.5    Approved by: Sandra Herbert, Head of Litigation and Corporate Law on behalf of the 

Director of Law and Governance & Deputy Monitoring Officer. 
 
 

Page 27



 

8. HUMAN RESOURCES IMPACT 
 
8.1 Enforcement of extended parking controls will require increased enforcement duties 

by Civil Enforcement Officers.  It is anticipated that this additional enforcement can 
be undertaken using existing resources. 

 
8.2 Approved by: Jennifer Sankar, Head of Human Resources. 
 
 
9. EQUALITIES IMPACT  
 
9.1 An initial Equalities Impact Assessment (EqIA) has been carried out and it is 

considered that a Full EqIA is not required. 
 
 
10. ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 
 
10.1 There are no environmental impacts arising from this report. 
 
11. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPACT  
 
11.1    There are no crime and disorder reduction impacts from this report. 
 
 
12. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

12.1 The recommendation is not to proceed with the proposed scheme as there isn’t 
widespread support for the scheme among residents of Bynes Road. 

 
 
13. OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED  
 
13.1 An alternative option is to introduce the parking controls.  Residents broadly do not 

support the proposal, clearly they are happy with the current availability of parking 
spaces. 

 
    
REPORT AUTHOR:   David Wakeling, Parking Design Manager 
   Highway Improvements, Parking Design 
   020 8762 6000 (ext. 88229) or 
   07771 977 158 
   
CONTACT OFFICER:   David Wakeling, Parking Design Manager, 

Highway Improvements, Parking Design 
   020 8726 6000 (Ext. 88229) or 
   07771 977 158 
BACKGROUND PAPERS – LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972  

Page 28



©

JOB NAME

DRAWING TITLE

DESIGNER VERIFIED SCALE AT A4 DATE

DRAWING NO

Cheyne Walk Area - Yellow line proposals

General Layout

For Consultation - Waiting restrictions

HH
DW NTS

05/09/2019

HWY/PS/PD-0404/01

PLACE DEPARTMENT

STREETS DIVISION

DIRECTOR - STEVE ILES

HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENTS

REVISION

-

NOTES

STATUS

Preliminary

P
age 29

AutoCAD SHX Text
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
15b

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
15a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
4a

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
HARRIET

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
NORTHAMPTON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
ANNANDALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
69.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
CHEYNE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
65.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
CARLYLE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
15a

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
3a

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
FRYSTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
301

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
28a

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
309

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
305

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
72.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
CARLYLE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
CARLYLE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
CARLYLE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
CARLYLE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
FRYSTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
FRYSTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
FRYSTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
CHEYNE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
CHEYNE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
ANNANDALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
ANNANDALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
NORTHAMPTON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
CHEYNE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
CHEYNE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
HARRIET

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office ©  Crown   Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. London Borough of Croydon. Licence No. 100017680. 2016



T
his page is intentionally left blank



D
E

S
IG

N
E

R
V

E
R

IF
IE

D
S

C
A

L
E

 A
T

 A
2

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o.
P

D
-420

C
H

E
Y

N
E

 W
A

LK
 A

R
E

A

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

D
E

S
IG

N
 LA

Y
O

U
T

D
W

D
W

N
T

S

P
L

A
C

E
 D

E
P

A
R

T
M

E
N

T
P

U
B

L
IC

 R
E

A
LM

D
IR

E
C

T
O

R
 - S

T
E

V
E

 ILE
S

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

 IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

S

©

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



 

REPORT TO: TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE  

8 July 2020 

SUBJECT: DUNHEVED ROADS AREA – OBJECTIONS TO THE 
PROPOSED EXTENSION OF THE NORTH PERMIT 

ZONE 

LEAD OFFICER: Shifa Mustafa, Executive Director of Place 

CABINET 
MEMBER: 

Councillor Stuart King, Cabinet Member for 
Environment, Transport and Regeneration (Job 

Share)   

WARDS: West Thornton 

CORPORATE PRIORITY/POLICY CONTEXT:  

          This report is in line with objectives to improve the safety and reduce 
obstructive parking on the Borough’s roads as detailed in: 

• Croydon Local Plan – Feb 2018 
• Local Implementation Plan 3; Section 2 Croydon Transport Objectives  
• Croydon’s Community Strategy; Priority Areas 1, 2, 3 & 4 
• The Croydon Plan 2nd Deposit; T4, T7, T35, T36, T42 and T43 
• Croydon Corporate Plan 2015 – 18 
• Croydon Parking Policy 2019 – 22; Section 2 
• www.croydonobservatory.org/strategies/ 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

These proposals can be contained within available budget.  

FORWARD PLAN KEY DECISION REFERENCE NO.:  Not a Key Decision 

1. RECOMMENDATIONS 
That the Traffic Management Advisory Committee recommend to the Cabinet 
Member for Environment, Transport and Regeneration that the Cabinet 
Member: 

1.1 Consider the response received to the formal consultation to extending the existing 
Croydon Controlled Parking Zone (North Permit Zone) into Dunheved Roads North, 
South, West and Close and Sharland Close with a combination of Shared-Use 
Permit/Pay via Ring-Go (8 hours maximum stay) and single yellow lines operating 
from 9am to 5pm, Monday to Saturday. 
 

1.2 Make a minor adjustment to the existing disabled bays and loading bay in 
Dunheved Road South as shown on Plan PD – 421b. 
 

1.3 Agree for the reasons detailed in this report to extend the Croydon Controlled 
Parking Zone (North Permit Zone) into the Dunheved Roads area as shown on 
drawing number PD – 421a. 

Page 33

Agenda Item 7



 

1.4     Inform the objector of the above decision. 

 
 
2. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
2.1 The purpose of this report is to consider objections received from the public following 

the formal consultation process on a proposal to extend the existing Croydon 
Controlled Parking Zone (North Permit Zone) into the Dunheved Roads area with a 
combination of Shared-Use Permit/Pay via Ring-Go (8 hours maximum stay) bays 
and single yellow lines operating from 9am to 5pm, Monday to Saturday. 

 
2.2 The outcome of the informal consultation was reported to this Committee at its 

meeting on 16 October 2019, where it was agreed to proceed to a formal 
consultation on the making of Traffic Management Orders to introduce the 
proposed scheme. 

 
2.3 On 12 March 2020 and pursuant to the delegation from the Leader dated 6 June 

2016, the Executive Director Place, following consultation with the Cabinet Member 
for Environment, Transport and Regeneration (job share) determined that it was 
appropriate to refer consideration of the matters detailed paragraph 2.1 above to the 
Traffic Management Advisory Committee for onward recommendation and 
determination to the Cabinet Member for Environment, Transport and Regeneration 
(job share) 

 
 
3. BACKGROUND 

 
3.1 The Dunheved Roads area formed part of the proposed Keston Road area 

extension of the North Permit Zone with 8am to 8pm, Monday to Sunday 
controls matching existing controls in the nearby Sutherland Road area.  
Occupiers in this area were consulted in the summer of 2018 and although the 
majority in the area voted for 8am to 8pm controls it was less clear in the 
Dunheved Roads area. 

 
3.2 A petition was received from the Croydon Mosque as part of the formal 

consultation process for the introduction of 8am to 8pm, Monday to Sunday 
parking controls in the Dunheved Roads area requesting that the times should 
be amended to 9am to 5pm, Monday to Saturday.  This followed a concern from 
the mosque that the longer controls would adversely affect activities that mainly 
take place during the evenings and at weekends.  A Ward Councillor and 
Council Officer met with the mosque on 24 June 2019 to discuss their concerns 
and find a potential solution. 

 
3.3 In July 2019, 279 sets of consultation documents which comprised of a letter, 

explaining the reasons for the consultation, a Frequently Asked Questions 
factsheet and a questionnaire were sent to occupiers in Dunheved Roads North, 
West, South and Close and Sharland Close.  A total of 47 questionnaires were 
returned, representing a 17% response rate.  Although this is a lower response 
rate than usual for an exercise of this type this there are reasons for this.  There 
are a large number of HMOs (houses of multiple occupation) where residents 
are not living on a long term basis and therefore less likely to be affected by 
parking issues.  The blocks of flats in the centre of this area all have adequate 
off-street parking and residents are therefore less likely to be concerned by on-

Page 34



 

street parking issues and a high proportion of the single dwellings which have 
off-street parking residents of which may also not be affected by the on-street 
parking situation. 

 
3.4 The table 1 below shows in detail the responses from the returned 

questionnaire. 
 

  Name 
No. of 
households 

No. of  
responses  
(% response) 

Mon - Sat,  
9am - 5pm 
(%) 

Mon - Sun,  
8am - 8pm 
(%) 

Dunheved Rd 
North 

83 7 (8%) 4 (57%) 3 (43%) 

Dunheved Rd 
West 

48 13 (27%) 11 (85%) 2 (15%) 

Dunheved Rd 
South 

76 15 (20%) 15 (100%) 0 (0%) 

Dunheved Close 27 10 (37%) 7 (70%) 3 (30%) 
Sharland Close 45 2 (4%) 1 (50%) 1 (50%) 

TOTAL 279 47 (17%) 38 (81%) 9 (19%) 
 

3.5 Overall, the majority of respondents 38 (81%) indicated that they were in favour  
of Monday to Saturday, 9am to 5pm controls. 

 
 

4. OBJECTION, RESPONSE & REQUEST 
 
Objection 

4.1 Only one objection to the proposals was received for a resident of the area.  The 
objection is on two grounds: 

4.1.1 The Dunheveds did not vote in favour of a CPZ.  They voted against parking 
controls and if the Council are introducing controls in roads where the vote was 
‘no’, then this should have been mentioned in the consultation letter. 

4.1.2  We were led to believe that there would be free parking within the scheme.  
There are a high proportion of elderly residents in this area who rely on carers 
and these should be catered for in the proposals. 

4.2 Response 
4.2.1 The results from the Dunheved Roads area when the original consultation took 

place in the summer of 2018 was even with 50% of returned questionnaires 
indicating that they want parking controls and with an equal split between 9am to 
5pm, Monday to Saturday and 8am to 8pm controls. 

4.2.2 Table 2 below shows the result to the original consultation in the summer of 2018 
to controls in this area: 
 
 
 

Page 35



 

Street Name   Are you in favour of a 
CPZ? 

What are your 
preferred hours? 

  No. of  
responses Yes No Mon-Sat  

9am - 5pm 
Mon-Sun 
8am-8pm 

Dunheved Close 8 3 38% 5 63% 1 33% 2 67% 
Dunheved Rd Nth 6 5 83% 1 17% 3 60% 2 40% 
Dunheved Rd Sth 5 2 40% 3 60%     2 100% 
Dunheved Rd 
West 6 3 50% 3 50% 2 67% 1 33% 

Sharland Close 3 1 33% 2 67% 1 100%     

Totals 28 14 50% 14 50% 7 50% 7 50% 

 
4.2.3 For the whole Keston Road area including the Dunheved Roads area 57% of 

returned questionnaires indicated a positive response to parking controls.  The 
Frequently Asked Questions sheet included in the consultation documents makes 
it clear that if the majority of responses in a road / area show that there is no 
support for parking controls then a scheme would not be progressed.  As the 
Dunheved Roads area showed a 50% support but the surrounding area a higher 
level of support, a decision was made to implement controls in the whole area to 
reduce parking stress and ensure safety and access in the area. 
 

4.2.4 In any event, responses to consultations form part of the information taken into 
consideration when deciding whether or not to introduce parking controls. The 
Council is required to also take into account: 
• the desirability of securing and maintaining reasonable access to premises. 
•  the effect on the amenities of any locality affected including the regulation and 

restriction of heavy commercial traffic so as to preserve or improve amenity. 
•  the national air quality strategy. 
•  the importance of facilitating the passage of public service vehicles and of 

securing the safety and convenience of persons using or desiring to use such 
vehicles. 

•     any other matters appearing to the Council to be relevant. 
 

4.2.5 There were no proposals to introduce free parking and this would be difficult 
within a shared-use Permit / Paid for scheme where free parking could reduce 
the available spaces for permit holders.  Neighbourhood Care Permits are 
available for registered carers who are undertaking visits across the Borough.  
Visitor permits using the Pay by Phone method of payment are available to 
residents and up to 60 half day permits can be purchased per year.  The scheme 
operates between 9am and 5pm, Monday to Saturday and most carers should be 
able to minimise the cost of parking by using a combination of Pay by Phone 
(current rate proposed is 50p per 30 minutes) and Visitor Permits if parking is 
required during the controls. 
 
Request  

4.3 A request has been received within the formal consultation period from the 
Croydon Mosque to make a minor amendment to the disabled and loading bays 
alongside the Mosque in Dunheved Road South.  The request is to relocate the 

Page 36



 

loading bay to a position close to Sharland Close and it is proposed that the 
loading bay and Disabled bays should be swapped as shown in Plan ***. 
 
 

5 CONSULTATION 
 
5.1 The purpose of this report is to consider comments and objections from the public 

following the giving of public notice of the proposals. Once the notices were 
published, the public had up to 21 days to respond. 

 
5.2 The legal process requires that formal consultation takes place in the form of Public 

Notices published in the London Gazette and a local paper (Croydon Guardian).  
Although it is not a legal requirement, this Council also fixes notices to lamp columns 
in the vicinity of the proposed schemes to inform as many people as possible of the 
proposals. 

 
5.3 Organisations such as the Fire Brigade, the Cycling Council for Great Britain, The 

Pedestrian Association, Age UK and bus operators are consulted separately at the 
same time as the public notice.  Other organisations are also consulted, depending 
on the relevance of the proposal.  No comments were received from any of these 
organisations. 

 
 
6 FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 

 There is a revenue budget of £50k for CPZ undertakings and £50k for Footway 
Parking and Disabled Bays, from which these commitments if approved will be 
funded.  Attached to the papers of this meeting is a summary of the overall 
financial impact of this and other applications for approval at this meeting.  If all 
applications were approved there would remain £50k un-allocated to be utilised in 
2020/2021. 

Page 37



 

 

6.1 Revenue and Capital consequences of report recommendations  

 

6.2 The effect of the decision  
6.2.1 The cost of introducing parking controls in the Dunheved Roads area has been 

estimated at £28,000.  This includes the supply and installation of signs, lines, the 
introduction of the Pay by Phone system and a contribution towards the legal 
costs. 

6.2.2 These costs can be contained within the available revenue budgets for 2020/21.  
6.3 Risks 
6.3.1 The current method of introducing parking controls is very efficient with the 

design and legal work being carried out within the department. The marking of the 
bays and the supply and installation of signs and posts is carried out using the 
new Highways Contract and the rates are lower than if the schemes were 
introduced under separate contractual arrangements 

6.4 Options 
6.4.1  The alternative option would be 8am to 8pm, Monday to Sunday controls, but this 

was rejected by the majority of occupiers in the Dunheved Roads area.   
6.5 Savings/ future efficiencies 
6.5.1 Introducing parking controls in this area would result in income from permits, Pay 

by Phone payments and from Penalty Charge Notices. 
 
6.6 Approved by: Felicia Wright, Head of Finance Place 
 

 
 

 Current    
Financial 

Year 

 M.T.F.S – 3 year Forecast 

  2020/21  2021/22  2022/23  2023/24 
           £’000  £’000  £’000  £’000 
         Revenue Budget     
available 

        

Expenditure  100  0  0  0 

Income  0  0  0  0 

Effect of Decision 
from Report 

        

Expenditure  28  0  0  0 

Income  0  0  0  0 

         Remaining Budget 
 

 72  0  0  0 
         Capital Budget 
available 

        

Expenditure  0  0  0  0 

Effect of Decision 
from report 

        

Expenditure  0  0  0  0 

         Remaining Budget 
 

 0  0  0  0 

Page 38



 

 
7 COMMENTS OF COUNCIL SOLICITOR AND MONITORING OFFICER  
 
7.1 Sections 6, 45, 46, 47, 49, 124 and Part IV of Schedule 9 of the Road Traffic 

Regulation Act 1984 (RTRA) provides the Council with the power to implement the 
changes proposed in this report. This legislation gives a local authority the power to 
make Traffic Management Orders (TMO) to control parking by designating on-street 
parking places, charging for their use and imposing waiting and loading restrictions 
on vehicles of all or certain classes at all times or otherwise.  

 
7.2 In making such Orders, the Council must follow the procedures set out at Schedule 

9, Part III of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 and detailed in the Local 
Authorities Traffic Orders (Procedure)(England and Wales) Regulations 1996 (the 
1996 Regulations). The said Regulations, prescribe inter alia, specific publication, 
consultation and notification requirements that must be strictly observed. It is 
incumbent on the Council to take account of any representations made during the 
consultation stage and any material objections received to the making of the Order, 
must be reported back to the decision maker before the Order is made. 

 
7.3 By virtue of section 122 of the RTRA, the Council must exercise its powers under 

that Act so as to secure the expeditious, convenient and safe movement of vehicular 
and other traffic including pedestrians, and the provision of suitable and adequate 
parking facilities on and off the highway. These powers must be exercised so far as 
practicable having regard to the following matters:- 
•  the desirability of securing and maintaining reasonable access to premises. 
•  the effect on the amenities of any locality affected including the regulation and 

restriction of heavy commercial traffic so as to preserve or improve amenity. 
•  the national air quality strategy. 
•  the importance of facilitating the passage of public service vehicles and of 

securing the safety and convenience of persons using or desiring to use such 
vehicles. 

•  any other matters appearing to the Council to be relevant. 
 
7.4 Recent High Court judgment confirms that the Council must have proper regard to 

the matters set out at s 122(1) and (2) and specifically document its analysis of all 
relevant section 122 considerations when reaching any decision. 

 
7.5      Approved by: Sandra Herbert, Head of Litigation and Corporate Law on behalf of the 

Director of Law and Governance & Deputy Monitoring Officer. 
 
 
8. HUMAN RESOURCES IMPACT 
 
8.1 Enforcement of extended parking controls will require increased enforcement duties 

by Civil Enforcement Officers.  It is anticipated that this additional enforcement can 
be undertaken using existing resources. 

 
8.2 Approved by: Jennifer Sankar, Head of Human Resources. 

 
 
 
 

Page 39



 

9. EQUALITIES IMPACT  
 
9.1 An initial Equalities Impact Assessment (EqIA) has been carried out and it is 

considered that a Full EqIA is not required. 
 
 
10. ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 
 
10.1 There are no environmental impacts arising from this report. 
 
 
11. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPACT  
 
11.1    There are no crime and disorder reduction impacts from this report. 
 
 
12. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

12.1 The recommendation is not to proceed with the proposed scheme as there isn’t 
widespread support for the scheme among residents of Bynes Road. 

 
 
13. OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED  
 
13.1 An alternative option is to introduce the parking controls.  Residents broadly do not 

support the proposal, clearly they are happy with the current availability of parking 
spaces. 

 
    
REPORT AUTHOR:   David Wakeling, Parking Design Manager 
   Highway Improvements, Parking Design 
   020 8762600 (ext. 88229) 
   07771 977 158 
   
CONTACT OFFICER:   David Wakeling, Parking Design Manager, 

Highway Improvements, Parking Design 
   020 8726 6000 (Ext. 88229) 
   07771 977 158 
BACKGROUND PAPERS – LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972  

Page 40



J
O

B
 N

A
M

E

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 T
IT

LE

D
E

S
IG

N
E

R
V

E
R

IF
IE

D
S

C
A

L
E

 A
T

 A
2

D
A

T
E

D
U

N
H

E
V

E
D

 R
O

A
D

S
 A

R
E

A
 C

P
Z

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

D
E

S
IG

N
 LA

Y
O

U
T

O
T

D
W

N
T

S
06/0

1/20

P
L

A
C

E
 D

E
P

A
R

T
M

E
N

T
P

U
B

L
IC

 R
E

A
L

M
D

IR
E

C
T

O
R

 - S
T

E
V

E
 IL

E
S

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

 IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

S

©

N
O

T
E

S

K
ey

P
ro

p
o

sed

P
e

rm
it p

a
rking bay

S
in

g
le

 ye
llow

 line
(M

o
n

 - S
a

t, 9
a

m
 - 5pm

)

C
P

Z
 b

o
u

ndary

E
xistingD

o
u

b
le

 ye
llo

w
 lines

D
ro

p
p

e
d

 kerb

D
isa

b
le

d
 p

a
rking bay

D
ISA

B
LE D

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 N
O

.
P

D
-42

1a

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



J
O

B
 N

A
M

E

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 T
IT

LE

D
E

S
IG

N
E

R
V

E
R

IF
IE

D
S

C
A

L
E

 A
T

 A
2

D
A

T
E

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 N
O

.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

D
E

S
IG

N
 LA

Y
O

U
T

D
W

D
W

N
T

S
06/0

1/20
P

D
-4

21b

P
L

A
C

E
 D

E
P

A
R

T
M

E
N

T
P

U
B

L
IC

 R
E

A
L

M
D

IR
E

C
T

O
R

 - S
T

E
V

E
 IL

E
S

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

 IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

S

©

N
O

T
E

S

D
U

N
H

E
V

E
D

 R
O

A
D

 S
O

U
T

H

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



REPORT TO: TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
8 July 2020 

SUBJECT: SCHOOL STREETS 

LEAD OFFICER: Shifa Mustafa, Executive Director, Place 
CABINET MEMBER: Councillor Stuart King, Acting Cabinet Member for 

Environment, Transport & Regeneration (Job Share) 
WARDS: Bensham Manor, Broad Green, Coulsdon Town, Crystal 

Palace & Upper Norwood, Norbury Park, Old Coulsdon, 
Purley Oaks & Riddlesdown, Sanderstead, South 

Croydon, Waddon, Woodside 
CORPORATE PRIORITY/POLICY CONTEXT/AMBITIOUS FOR CROYDON: 
 
School Streets are intended to contribute to securing a healthy and safe 
environment near to schools, and to help children and parents use cars less and to 
walk, cycle and use public transport more. 

The School Streets are specified in the Parking Policy 2019–2022, to support 
objectives in the: 

• Corporate Plan 2018 – 2022. 
• Third Local Implementation Plan (LIP3). 
• Air Quality Strategy and Air Quality Actions Plan. 
• Croydon’s Public Health Strategy. 
• Croydon’s Community Strategy 2016 – 2021. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
The implementation and operation of the 10 new School Streets is budgeted for. 
The recommendation to start all 10 schemes from 1 September 2020, as opposed 
to stager their starts until January 2021, will have a revenue effect of (127k) in the 
current financial year – i.e. additional revenue. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 

That the Traffic Management Advisory Committee recommend to the 
Cabinet Member for Environment, Transport and Regeneration that the 
Cabinet Member: 

1.1 Note the summary of responses received to the informal engagement with 
occupiers within the areas potentially affected by 11 current School Street 
proposals. 

 
1.2 Agree, for the reasons detailed in this report, to proceed with introducing 

Experimental Traffic Regulation Orders and the consultation under the 
experimental procedure regarding the proposal for new pedestrian zones to 
restrict, during the start (8.00am to 9.30am) and end (2.00pm to 4.00pm) of 
the school day (i.e during term time), the use of motor vehicle traffic (except 
permit holders and emergency vehicles) along the 10 School Streets. To 
clarify; pedestrians and cyclists would be allowed. 
 

Page 45

Agenda Item 8



The 10 School Streets are in the following locations as illustrated in 
Appendix 1: 

 
a. Christ Church CofE Primary School (Purley Oaks & Riddlesdown) 
b. Downsview Primary School (Norbury Park) 
c. Ecclesbourne Primary School (Bensham Manor) 
d. Harris Primary Academy Hailing Park (South Croydon) 
e. Keston Primary School (Old Coulsdon) 
f. Kingsley Primary Academy (Broad Green) 
g. Oasis Academy Reylands (Woodside) 
h. Ridgeway Primary School (Sanderstead) 
i. St Thomas Becket Catholic Primary (Woodside) 
j. St Joseph’s Catholic Junior School (Crystal Palace & Upper Norwood) 
 

1.3 Agree not to proceed with an experimental scheme and consultation in 
2020 at: Harris Academy Purley Way (Waddon). 
 

1.4 Agree to proceed with a formal consultation on extending the operational 
hours to 7.30am to 9.30am and 2.00pm to 4.00pm (during term time) of the 
pre-existing School Street in Fairfield Way, Dunsfold Rise and Meadow 
Rise, at the Woodcote schools (Coulsdon Town ward), as illustrated in 
Appendix 2. 
 

1.5 If consultations are agreed at 1.2 or 1.4, delegate to the Highway 
Improvement Manager, Public Realm Directorate the authority to give the 
notice. 
 

1.6 Note that the outcomes of the consultations indicated in 1.2 above would be 
a Key Decision and will therefore be referred back to the Traffic 
Management Advisory Committee in 2021 for advising the Cabinet Member 
for Transport and Environment (job share) on whether to change, withdraw 
or make permanent each the 10 individual proposals. 

 
 

2 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

2.1 Roads with a school entrance are spaces where children and moving motor 
vehicles co-exist. Many such roads are have hostile traffic and parking 
conditions at the start and end of the school day. The perceived unsafe 
conditions discourage many parents from walking and instead encourage 
more car use. 
 

2.2 The air pollution and inactivity that result from car driving on the school run is 
a public health concern. Regional and local transport policies translate into a 
need for actions to help reverse the trend of an increasing number of children 
being driven by car to school. Statutory guidance on the Covid-19 recovery 
directs local authorities to reallocate road space to people walking and 
cycling, both to encourage active travel and to enable social distancing, 
including fast tracking the implementation of School Streets that are under 
consideration. 
 

2.3 A School Street, in present context, is a road with a school entrance which 
during the start and end of the school day is restricted to use by pedestrians 

Page 46



and cyclists, with most motor vehicle traffic prohibited. The School Street is 
intended to contribute to securing a healthy and safe environment near to a 
school, to help encourage children and parents use cars less and to walk, 
cycle and use public transport more. There are good indicators that School 
Streets support health and wellbeing, and that they can contribute to learning 
opportunities for children (detailed in section 3.9.2). 
 

2.4 An initial engagement with regards to requests for 11 new School Street 
schemes has produced a result as follows: 
 

• 2,679 consultation letters issued. 
• 457 responses received (17%). 
• 53% are in favour of the proposal. 
• 46% are opposed to the proposal. 
• 1% are undecided. 

  
2.5 The recommended subsequent 6-month consultation on proposed 

Experimental Traffic Regulation Orders to implement School Streets in 10 of 
the 11 locations is due to start on 1 September 2020. The outcome of this 
statutory consultation will be reported to this Committee for consideration. 
 

2.6 In response to residents’ feedback and learning, a further consultation is 
recommended on amending the pre-existing Traffic Regulation Order for the 
School Street at the Woodcote Primary and High Schools, to extend the start 
time of the operating hours by 30 minutes in the mornings and afternoon. The 
outcome of this separate consultation will be considered by the Executive 
Director, under the scheme of delegation, unless significant and potentially 
controversial objections are received. 
 

2.7 The implementation and operation of the 10 new School Streets is budgeted 
for. The original budget assumed staggering the start of the 10 schemes 
between September 2020 and January 2021. Starting all 10 schemes under 
Experimental TROs from 1 September 2020 will have a revenue effect of 
(127k) – i.e. additional revenue. 

 
 
3 DETAILS 

 
3.1 POLICY OBJECTIVES 

 
3.1.1 The Parking Policy 2019-221 and its associated Actions Plan was agreed by 

Cabinet on 25 March 2019, subject to a consultation that concluded in July 
2019. The approved Actions Plan sets out to introduce 10 School Streets in 
2020/21. 
 

3.1.2 The overarching policy objectives for School Streets and their source 
references are documented in the Parking Policy 2019-2022. In summary: 
 
• The Corporate Plan responds to National, Regional and Local policies and 

priorities, including to support the development of a culture of healthy 
living, deliver the Air Quality Action Plan and tackling idling vehicles, in 
particular around schools. 

Page 47



• The Third Local Implementation Plan (LIP3) reflects local plans and The 
London Mayor’s strategy, including that all local Councils must help 
children and parents to use cars less and to walk, cycle and use public 
transport more. This requires amongst other things that a healthier and 
safer environment is established at the school entrance. The strategy 
requires that London Local Authorities reduce the volume of traffic by 5% 
by 2021. 

• The Director of Public Health’s annual report 2017 calls for action on air 
pollution and inactivity. It identifies that Croydon has the highest rate of 
hospital admissions for childhood (0-9 years) asthma and the third highest 
number of asthma deaths in London. 205 premature deaths in Croydon 
are linked to air pollution. There are further health concerns associated 
with 40% of children and 60% of adults in Croydon being overweight. 

• The level of Croydon residents who regularly travel by active modes 
(walking and cycling) is lower than in each of our neighbouring 6 
boroughs. Only 26% of Croydon residents undertake the minimum 20 
minutes of active travel each day needed to stay healthy. 

• Croydon’s Community Strategy has as priority to secure a good start in 
life, improve health outcomes and healthy life expectancy, and to secure a 
safer, cleaner and greener borough. 

 
3.1.3 The DfT’s statutory guidance on Covid-192 recovery directs local authorities to 

reallocate road space to people walking and cycling, both to encourage active 
travel and to enable social distancing. The DfT highlights the urgent need to 
change travel habits and suggests “measures should be taken as swiftly as 
possible, and in any event within weeks”. The DfT promotes School Streets as 
one of these measures. It suggests using Permanent, Experimental or 
Temporary Traffic Regulation Orders (PTRO, ETRO, TTRO) as necessary. 
The TTRO requires 7 days advanced notice and does not invite objections. 
The TTRO can remain in place for up to 18 months. The ETRO is similar to 
the TTRO, but includes a requirement for formal consultation during the first 6 
months of the scheme, after which consideration is given to making the TRO 
permanent, adjusting it or withdrawing it. The PTRO requires a 21-day 
consultation in advance of a decision to introduce a permanent scheme. The 
PTRO can only be adjusted or withdrawn by repeating the 21-day 
consultation. 
 

3.1.4 TfL guidance3, in response to the DfT, highlights the “significant risks” from a 
car-based recovery from Covid-19 in London. The Mayor and TfL “fully 
support School Streets as an effective way to enable social distancing and 
reduce road danger outside schools” and they advocate their “rapid roll out”. 
The TfL priority criteria include “where plans are already progressing to deliver 
a School Street, and can be fast tracked”. The TfL recommends using 
ETROs, with public consultation, for these fast tracked School Streets. 
 

3.1.5 The experience from introducing 3 School Street pilots in 2017 tells that failing 
to consult residents up front can result in distorted responses from the 
subsequent consultation on making a scheme permanent. It was evident from 
the 2017 schemes that many respondents objected on grounds of the 
implementation process, as opposed to considering the merits of actual 
scheme itself.  
 

Page 48



3.1.6 As detailed below in this report, the project for the 2020 School Street 
schemes has already engaged with residents informally in February 2020. In 
consideration to section 3.1.6 and the fact the TTRO procedure does not 
invite objections – i.e. the process can risk distorting the future consultation 
outcome – it is recommended to implement the proposed schemes under the 
ETRO procedure and consult formally during the first 6 months of the 
experimental period. 
 
 

3.2 THE PROBLEM NEAR SCHOOL ENTRANCES 
 
The issues described in this section are notwithstanding the medium term 
Covid situation referenced in the DfT and TfL standing guidance (3.1.4 and 
3.1.5 above). 
 

3.2.1 Car ownership across the UK has grown 39% in the last 20 years4. In 
Croydon, car ownership grew 7% in 3 recent years1 and is continuing to grow. 
 

3.2.2 The UK birth rate reached a 10 year peak in 2015, with 22% more children 
being born compared to 20055. The new intakes at primary schools have 
naturally increased in recent years and the trend of more children reaching 
school age will continue for some years. 
 

3.2.3 At the same time, many school journeys that previously were considered easy 
walkable are increasingly made by car. The responses to the present 
consultation evidence examples of parents driving less that 300m to school. 
The increasing car use by school parents has a number of reasons, which 
importantly includes the self-perpetuating fear of the growing number of cars.  
 

3.2.4 The health impacts on children from air pollution and inactivity is not alleviated 
until a significant proportion of parents stop non-essential car use. Parents will 
not stop using the car until the school entrance feels safe. The causal link tells 
that addressing the perception of road safety near to the school entrance can 
impact positively on air quality and health. 
 

3.2.5 School street traffic at the start and end of the school day does not relate 
solely to the school run. In some school roads there is also an element of 
commuter traffic using the road as a so-called rat run. The amount of such 
commuter traffic is additionally influenced by the increased car ownership and 
use. 
 

3.2.6 Several school roads have reached saturation point at the start and end of 
school days – meaning that in the most severe places there is practically no 
road space left for the problem to worsen. What is changing, however, is the 
awareness of and attitude towards air pollution. In Croydon’s online public 
engagement survey in September 20181, 86% of 994 respondents agreed 
that traffic levels are too high in Croydon and 72% agreed it should be 
lowered. 74% agreed they are concerned about air quality. 62% agreed they 
would use the car less if the alternatives were better. 57% agreed they would 
walk more and 39% would cycle more if conditions were right. 
 

Page 49



3.2.7 The annual average level of Nitric Dioxides gasses that are harmful to lungs 
exceeds the 40ug/m3 legal limit throughout the borough1. The level of air 
pollution inside a car in congested traffic is typically significantly higher and 
more damaging than on the pavement6. 
 

3.2.8 Traffic and parking near to schools is also a nuisance to local residents, who 
in this consultation have reported obstruction, hostility, pollution and noise 
problems near to their homes. School facilities are also used after hours, for 
after school clubs, evening and Saturday activities. All of these attract 
additional cars, beyond the traditional school run. 
 

3.2.9 Separate to the informal consultation on the 2020 suggested schemes, 
multiple residents within the existing School Street zone in Fairfield Way, 
Dunsfold Rise and Meadow Rise, Coulsdon, report new problems at the 
Woodcote Primary and High schools: 
 
a) The Woodcote scheme was amongst the first experimental pilots that 

were made permanent in September 2018. It is unique in having retained 
a 2.30pm afternoon starting time, whereas the 10 other active School 
Streets now all start at 2.00pm. As the school intake has grown, so has 
the competition for car-borne pick-up space. Consequently, an increasing 
number of primary school parents now drive into and park-up in the 
School Street before 2.30pm, to wait for 45min until the school day ends. 
The Highway Code for the pedestrian zone (School Street) sign permits a 
vehicle to drive out of the road at any time. 
 

b) The High school intake has also grown and an increasing number of six 
form students now drive their own cars to school. A growing number of 
these students arrive before the 8.00am morning start time and park-up in 
the residential road all day, including being parked when the neighbouring 
primary school starts and ends. 
 

c) Residents report wider conflicts from the parking demand from the 
expanded use of the school facilities, between 6.00am to 9.00pm on 
weekdays and mornings until 2.00pm on Saturdays. The activities include 
breakfast clubs, after school clubs, gymnastics, acrobatics, athletics, 
football coaching and a Saturday language school (referencing 300 
registered students). 

 
The points a) and b) above can be countered by adjusting the morning and 
afternoon start times of the existing School Street. 
 
Most of the activities in point c) are not primarily attended by younger children. 
Their control is outside the intended purpose of the School Street and should 
therefore be addressed by general parking management measures. It is not 
recommended to extend the School Street to Saturdays. 
  

3.2.10 A weakening in conventional parking control measures at schools has 
resulted from the Deregulation Act 2015. Prior to the Act, a camera vehicle 
was a strong deterrent to parking contraventions near to school entrances. A 
single camera vehicle could efficiently cover many schools daily. Public 
opinion however perceived this method of enforcement as being over-zealous 
and the 2015 Act removed the powers to use camera enforcement for most 

Page 50



parking contraventions. Camera enforcement is now mainly associated with 
moving traffic. Static camera enforcement is still used at a number of school 
zigzag locations. The zigzag is however not the whole problem near to 
schools. The camera cannot enforce parking on corners, driveways or 
behaviours that results in congestion (e.g. stopping to set down children in the 
middle of the road). Enforcing the zigzag does also not address the amount of 
moving traffic. 
 

3.2.11 Manual enforcement, by patrolling Civil Enforcement Officers (CEO), is a 
weaker deterrent to parking contraventions near to school entrances. School 
parents tends to wait in or near to their vehicles and will simply move on once 
a CEO shows up and starts recording vehicle details. Most will simply drive 
around the block and park up again, once the CEO has left the road. As an 
example, the parking enforcement team made 44 targeted visits to Keston 
Primary School in the first 10 months of 2019/20, in addition to other 
incidental patrolling and a full week of co-patrolling with the Police coordinated 
Safer Neighbourhood Team. The efforts resulted in just 2 penalty charges 
being issued and they have not managed to eliminate bad parking practices. It 
is practically impossible to have an everywhere permanent presence for 
moving on drivers at the more than 130 schools in the borough.  
 

3.2.12 The manual method of enforcement also regularly results in undesirable 
incidents of arguments and foul language from drivers, which can be 
intimidating and set a bad example in front of the children. 

 
 

3.3 EVIDENCE FOR SCHOOL STREETS 
 

3.3.1 The School Street is a relatively young concept. In present context, it is a 
street with a school entrance which during the start and end of the school day 
is restricted to use by pedestrians and cyclists, with most motor vehicle traffic 
prohibited. The method for operating a Schools Street is described in 
Appendix 4. 
 

3.3.2 Walking and cycling to school benefit children’s health and wellbeing. A 
national survey of head teachers at schools with School Street schemes 
suggest that children who walk or cycle arrive at school more alert, happier 
and ready to work (UK100, August 2019). In Croydon, the head teachers also 
report improved punctuality and uptakes in breakfast clubs. The lobby group 
Mums for Lungs references studies evidencing that air pollution contributes to 
reduced ability to learn and poorer exam performance7. The School Streets 
thereby contribute to both better health outcomes and learning opportunities 
for the children. 
 

3.3.3 When a parent must use the car, then the School Street suggests that they 
should park in a safe and legal place well away from the school entrance and 
walk the last leg of the school journey. One information source suggests that 
parents should park at least 2-minute walk away from the school entrance4, to 
benefit children’s health and wellbeing. 
 

3.3.4 The School Street is not an isolated device. It supports the educational and 
information efforts of the Council’s Road Safety and School Travel Planners, 
including their coordination with the TfL STARS and Living Street’s WOW 

Page 51



Travel Tracker initiatives. STARS aims to inspire young Londoners to travel to 
school sustainably, actively, responsibly and safely by championing walking, 
scooting and cycling. Living Streets is a charity that inspires the nation to walk 
more. WOW is a pupil-led initiative where children self-report how they get to 
school every day using the interactive WOW Travel Tracker. 
 

3.3.5 Before and after surveys, precisely 1 year apart, have indicated the initial 
School Street schemes, in combination with educational efforts, have 
significantly reduced car use. They identified a 15% (least case) to 62% (best 
case) uptake in walking, cycling and scootering, and a 15% to 25% reduction 
in car use at the various scheme locations. The variances in the outcomes are 
somewhat proportional to the car ownership and topology in the landscape 
near the schools – e.g. the biggest measured reduction in car use occurred at 
a school in the south of the borough where the latest data evidence that car 
ownership is more prevalent. The conversion is expected to be less where a 
school has a large catchment area, under-developed public transport, hilly 
surroundings or links to dangerous roads – where the reluctance to walking 
naturally appears higher. 
 

3.3.6 The 11 existing School Streets did all attract initial concerns over the traffic 
and parking problems being displaced into neighbouring roads. However, the 
residual parking has invariably been less in amount and is dispersed over a 
wider area, compared to the prior situation at the school entrance. Feedback 
suggests that the School Street does not result in severe displacement and 
that any reduction in car use will in fact also benefit the surrounding areas. 
There has been very few concerns raised following the past School Street 
implementations and any complaints from residents in neighbouring roads 
have gradually ceased.  
 

3.3.7 The improved situation has not happened on day one, as parents have clearly 
needed a little time to adjust. Some parents need to see the School Street 
becoming perceivably safer, before being ready to consider the alternatives to 
car use. Parents also become educated and socially influenced by observing 
other parents, demonstrating that children can walk to school or be dropped 
off further away from school and walk the last leg of the journey.  
 

3.3.8 The proposed School Street zones aim to be extensive enough to practically 
make the road with the school entrance perceivably safer, while being small 
enough to minimise the number of residents and businesses impacted by time 
restrictions on visitors and deliveries. A smaller zone results in a relatively 
shorter and more tolerable walking distance for visitors that at certain times 
must parking outside of the zone. 
 

3.3.9 Anecdotally, the chair of one residents association has commented six 
months after the introduction in one location: “It’s been such an improvement 
to the residents, but I [also] notice the parents and pupils seem less manic 
with a more relaxed feel morning and afternoons. It would be such a shame to 
go back to the pandemonium we used to have. We have recently paid to have 
the entire verge cleared and litter picked - much because this scheme has 
made us feel prouder of the road now it is calmer and we don’t have the daily 
abuse we all used to dread”. 

 
 

Page 52



3.4 METHOD FOR SELECTING THE PRESENT SCHOOL STREET 
PROPOSALS 
 

3.4.1 4 favourable but unfulfilled school requests from 2018, plus incidental 
requests from schools, parents and/or residents collected during 2019 were 
considered. An objective method was used to priority rank the schools. A 
factors weighting was derived by analytical hierarchy process, decomposing 
the decision-making problem into simpler pair-wise comparisons between 
each of the candidate factors. The conditions for each factor, at each 
candidate school was scored as being favourable, neutral or unfavourable 
towards a School Street scheme. The multiplied out scores defines an 
objective priority ranking. 

 
Table 1 – Schools prioritisation method Assessment multiplier 
Factor Weight Favour Neutral Unfav. 
School is STARS committed. 12% x +1 x 0 x -1 
School able and willing to administer own 
permits. 

28% x +1 x 0 x -1 

Health & Safety risk exists – e.g. one or 
more of: 
• Dangerous parking practices. 
• Air polluting traffic congestion. 
• Hazardous road conditions, including 

speeding through-traffic at school 
times. 

• Recurring reports of confrontations 
between road users, parents and 
residents. 

19% x +1 x 0 x -1 

Tolerable impact on essential traffic in the 
immediate and surrounding roads. 

20% x +1 x 0 x -1 

Alternative travel options exist, 
PTAL/CTAL >=2. 

9% x +1 x 0 x -1 

Appropriate catchment area, >75% of 
pupils live within 20min walking distance. 

10% x +1 x 0 x -1 

Located within a designated Healthy 
School Neighbourhood area. 

2% x +1 x 0 x -1 

 
3.4.2 From November 2019, the potential and highest ranked schools were asked 

to confirm their wish to participate in a suggested scheme. The project 
continued to reach out to the ranked schools, until by early February 2020 a 
list of 11 schools was obtained. The selected number has anticipated that 1 or 
2 schools might drop out during the consultation process. 
 
Table 2 – 11 schools selected for School Street consultation (in alphabetic 
order). 
School Post 

code 
Ward 

Christ Church CofE Primary 
School 

CR8 2QE Purley Oaks & Riddlesdown 

Downsview Primary School SE19 
3XE 

Norbury Park 

Ecclesbourne Primary School CR7 7FA Bensham Manor 

Page 53



Harris Academy Purley Way CR0 4FE Waddon 
Harris Primary Academy 
Hailing Park 

CR2 6HS South Croydon 

Keston Primary School CR5 1HP Old Coulsdon 
Kingsley Primary Academy CR0 3JT Broad Green 
Oasis Academy Reylands SE25 

4XG 
Woodside 

Ridgeway Primary School CR2 0EQ Sanderstead 
St Thomas Becket Catholic 
Primary 

SE25 
5BN 

Woodside 

St Joseph’s Catholic Junior 
School 

SE19 
3NU 

Crystal Palace & Upper 
Norwood 

 
3.4.3 The schools’ catchment areas are shown in Appendix 3. They identify that 

large proportions of pupils live within realistic walking distances. 
 
 

3.5 INFORMAL ENGAGEMENT 
 

3.5.1 The informal consultation stage is an early engagement for purpose of 
gauging opinions and receiving feedback to verify the initial assumptions for a 
proposal. It is an invitation to residents, businesses and occupiers/operators 
of amenities in the locality to contribute their first-hand experiences and 
observations that are otherwise not obviously available to the local authority 
officers. The consultees were invited to propose changes to the initially 
suggested zone layout. The engagement effectively enables people in the 
locality to co-design the scheme. 
 

3.5.2 An example of the informal consultation letter is included in Appendix 6. The 
letter was posted to all addresses within 300m road distance to the suggested 
School Street zone ends. Experiences from past consultations tell that the 
response rate tends to drop off to below 5% at this distance, indicating that an 
overall indifference in opinions is reached at such distance. Occupiers further 
than 300m distance from the scheme do also not have the immediate first-
hand experiences and their views risk not being representative of the true 
needs within the locality. Most weight is normally given to the views of 
occupiers immediately within the suggested zone. 
 

3.5.3 2,679 consultation letters were posted between 9 January and 5 February 
2020. The questionnaires asked respondents to commit a Yes or No to the 
need for traffic restrictions at the start and end of school days and it provided 
space for open comments. The consultation letter included a drawing of an 
initially suggested zone and the answers to 12 frequently asked questions. 
For purpose of supporting a future Data Protection Impact Assessment 
(DPIA), it also described and presented an opportunity for making comments 
on the use of ANPR cameras. 
 

3.5.4 457 responses are received, which corresponds to an overall 17% response 
rate. Tables 3 to 5 provides an analysis. A detailed breakdown of the 
response quantities is provided in Appendix 5. 
 
 
 

Page 54



Table 3 – Consultation responses summary, by general stakeholder category. 
Stakeholder 
category 

Result Headline comments 

Address within 
the proposed 
zones 

26% response 
rate 

Identify with the problems to be 
solved. Strong expressions of 
support for a School Street. Urging a 
speedy introduction. 

87% in favour 
13% against 
0% undecided 

Address outside 
the propose 
zones 

14% response 
rate 

Mixed results between the locations, 
ranging from strong opposition to 
strong support. An overall opposition 
relates primarily to concerns for a 
displacement of the problem. 

35% in favour 
63% against 
2% undecided 

 
 

Table 4 – Consultation responses summary, by locations. 
Proposed 
location 

Result Headline comments 

Christ Church 
CofE Primary 
School 

Inside zone: 
22% response 
rate 
87% in favour 
13% against 
0% undecided 

Respondents from addresses both 
inside and outside the zone are in 
favour of a School Street. Low 
response rate from addresses outside 
the suggested zone. Some concern 
about a conflict with the temporary 
one-way system (due to end June 
2020). 

Outside zone: 
6% response 
rate 
57% in favour 
43% against 
0% undecided 

Downsview 
Primary School, 
Marston Way 
 

Inside zone: 
16% response 
rate 
75% in favour 
25% against 
0% undecided 

Relatively low response rate, with just 
5 respondents from outside the zone 
(vs 20 from inside). There are strong 
expressions of support from inside 
the suggested zone. There are 
equally strong opposition from 
outside the zone, although the 
statistically lower significance should 
be noted. 

Outside zone: 
12% response 
rate 
20% in favour 
80% against 
0% undecided 

Ecclesbourne 
Primary School 
 

Inside zone: 
25% response 
rate 
69% in favour 
31% against 
0% undecided 

Respondents from addresses both 
inside and outside the zone are 
significantly in favour of a School 
Street; but with just 7 respondents 
from the outside the suggested zone. 

Outside zone: 
3% response 
rate 
71% in favour 
29% against 

Page 55



0% undecided 

Harris Academy 
Purley Way 

Inside zone: 
13% response 
rate 
100% in favour 
0% against 
0% undecided 

Low response rate overall. 
Respondents refer to wider parking 
issues in the Propeller Crescent off-
street parking place. 

Outside zone: 
4% response 
rate 
67% in favour 
33% against 
0% undecided 

Harris Primary 
Academy Hailing 
Park 

Inside zone: 
52% response 
rate 
93% in favour 
7% against 
0% undecided 

High response rate and strongly in 
favour from within the proposed zone. 
Majority of responses outside the 
proposed zone are in favour; but with 
a relatively low response rate. 

Outside zone: 
8% response 
rate 
60% in favour 
30% against 
10% undecided 

Keston Primary 
School 

Inside zone: 
75% response 
rate 
100% in favour 
0% against 
0% undecided 

Very high response rate and 100% in 
favour from within the suggested 
zone. Relatively high response rate 
from outside the zone and strongly 
against. Residents in Court Avenue 
accounts for half the responses from 
outside the zone and they complain 
that traffic and parking conditions are 
already intolerable. 14% of Court 
Avenue respondents said they would 
support the scheme if it is extended 
to their road. This is discussed below. 

Outside zone: 
25% response 
rate 
25% in favour 
72% against 
4% undecided 

Kingsley Primary 
Academy 

Inside zone: 
11% response 
rate 
100% in favour 
0% against 
0% undecided 

Overall low response rate. 
Respondents from outside the 
suggested zone complain about 
commuter parking from the nearby 
industrial Factory Lane and they are 
concerned about additional 
displacement from a School Street. 
10% of respondents (all living within 
300m distance) commented that they 
must drive they child to Kingsley 
Primary school for road safety 
reasons. 
 
 

Outside zone: 
10% response 
rate 
31% in favour 
69% against 
0% undecided 

Page 56



Oasis Academy 
Ryelands 

Inside zone: 
30% response 
rate 
82% in favour 
18% against 
0% undecided 

Highly favourable response rate from 
within the suggested zone. 
Neighbouring Watcombe Road and 
Ferndale Road have 14% high 
response rate and are 76% against a 
scheme. Residents in the 2 roads 
complain that traffic and parking 
conditions are already intolerable and 
they are concerned about 
displacement. 12% of Ferndale Road 
respondents said they would support 
the scheme if it is extended to their 
road. 7% of respondents have stated 
the area also needs controlled 
parking. 

Outside zone: 
11% response 
rate 
24% in favour 
76% against 
0% undecided 

Ridgeway 
Primary School 

Inside zone: 
85% response 
rate 
91% in favour 
9% against 
0% undecided 

Very high response rate and 91% in 
favour from within the suggested 
zone. High response rate from 
outside the zone and overall against. 
Respondents from Ellenbridge Way 
and Elmfield Way in particular are 
concerned about displacement and 
several respondents express a dislike 
for traffic restrictions in general. 

Outside zone: 
41% response 
rate 
34% in favour 
63% against 
3% undecided 

St Joseph’s 
Catholic Junior 
School 

Inside zone: 
42% response 
rate 
100% in favour 
0% against 
0% undecided 

High favourable response rate from 
within the suggested zone. Mixed 
response from outside the zone. 
Bradley Road has a history of rat 
running and its respondents say the 
pre-existing one-way system is 
complicated enough. 18% of 
opponents in Bradley Road say they 
would support the School Street if it 
was extended to Bradley Road. 

Outside zone: 
16% response 
rate 
48% in favour 
52% against 
0% undecided 

St Thomas 
Becket Catholic 
Primary 

Inside zone: 
33% response 
rate 
92% in favour 
8% against 
0% undecided 

High favourable response rate from 
within the suggested zone. Low 
response rate overall opposed from 
outside the zone. Respondents in 
Birchanger Road are concerned 
about pre-existing school time 
problems and displacement. Outside zone: 

10% response 
rate 
40% in favour 
60% against 
0% undecided 

 
  

Page 57



Table 5 – Consultation responses, quantification of comments. 
Respondents Qty Comment 
Opposing a 
suggested 
scheme 
 
Total 208 
respondents 
making 369 
comments 

113 Concern about traffic and parking displacement. 
18 Problems not severe enough to merit restrictions. 
17 Scheme will have negligible effect on reducing 

car use. 
16 Reduces access for visitors and deliveries. 
14 Will make roads overall more unsafe, over a 

wider area. 
13 Enhance parking enforcement instead. 
11 Parents must drive, because walking is unsafe. 
11 Proposed operating hours are too long. 
9 Just a revenue making scheme. 
8 Do more to educate and encourage walking 

instead. 
8 Infringes my freedom to use the road. 
8 Problems are real, but find another solution. 
7 Restricts access for/to disabled/vulnerable 

person. 
7 Too inconvenient for residents. 
6 There are enough restrictions in Bradley Road 

already. 
5 Move the school or relocate excess children to 

another. 
5 Will unfairly penalise drivers. £130 penalty is too 

high 
5 Yes, if zone includes Court Avenue (14% of its 

respondents). 
4 

for each 
Don't want more enforcement cameras, too many 
already. 
Waste of public money. 

3 
for each 
comment 

Create drop-off zone on or at the school instead. 
I have a mobility issue and need to drive my child 
to school. 
Public transport alternative is inadequate in 
Sanderstead. 
The proposed zone is too small to have any 
effect. 
Will adversely affect the 404 bus route in Keston 
Avenue. 
Will affect property value. 

2 
for each 
comment 

Concern that permit charges will be introduced. 
Install residents' gate instead. 
Restrictions do not exclude school holidays. 
School should ban parents from driving, with 
exceptions. 
Some children live too far away for walking. 
Will increase travel distances and add to air 
pollution. 
Will make emergency vehicle access more 
difficult. 
Yes, if zone is extended into Allen Road. 

Page 58



Yes, if zone is extended into Watcombe Road. 
1 

for each 
comment 

A family member needs to drive my child to the 
school. 
Added street furniture (signs, camera) will ruin 
public realm. 
Anti-competitively discriminates home delivery 
operators. 
Car use is modern day living and a reality. 
Children are more exposed to air pollutants when 
walking. 
Close the Marston Way school entrance instead. 
Do more to encourage car share instead. 
Do more to encourage public transport use 
instead. 
Does not address root cause of inadequate road 
design. 
Does not guarantee residents a parking space. 
Extend the times on zigzag to 5.00pm instead. 
I don't want to pay for parking. 
I live in Kynaston Avenue and need Attlee Close 
for parking. 
I live in Portland Road and need Oakley Road for 
parking. 
I live in Selsdon Road and need Haling Road for 
parking. 
Introduce school busses instead. 
Introduce school crossing patrol instead. 
Make Court Avenue one-way and introduce on-
site drop-off. 
Moving exempt vehicles would be a safety risk to 
children. 
Nanny state approach. 
Narrow Southcote Road to single-file with a 
zebra instead. 
Obtain agreement for parents to use pub car park 
instead. 
Our Coulsdon Rd customers need Keston 
Avenue parking. 
Problem has not been quantified; scheme is not 
justified. 
Reopen St Joseph school entrance in Convent 
Hill instead. 
Residents in neighbouring roads need permits. 
School parents could drive into zone via 
Dickensons Place. 
Schools to enrol children at walking distance only 
instead. 
Stagger school hours instead. 
Survey questionnaire binary choice is invalid 
(unspecified). 
Survey questionnaire is misleading (unspecified). 
Use camera enforcement of yellow lines and 
zigzag instead. 

Page 59



Will adversely affect the 466 bus route in 
Coulsdon Road. 
Will cause an increase in road rage incidents. 
Will enable school staff abusing the road. 
Will reduce child discipline and encourage 
playing in street. 
Will cause parent pick-up lateness, with 
safeguarding issues. 
Won't work because Marston Way is a cul-de-
sac. 
Won't work because Sandown Road is a 
through-road. 
Yes, if zone is extended into Birchanger Road. 
Yes, if zone is extended into Euston Road. 
Yes, if zone is extended into Ferndale Road. 
Yes, if zone is extended into Onslow Road. 
Yes, if zone is extended into The Ridge Way. 
Yes, if zone is extended into whole length of 
Chapman Road. 

In favour of a 
suggested 
scheme 
 
Total 243 
respondents 
making 308 
comments 

72 Needed for improving road safety, mostly for 
children. 

47 Needed for improving access to my 
home/driveway.  

28 Needed for reducing congestion and bad parking. 
21 Needed for improving air quality. 
18 Needed for reducing hostility and abusive 

behaviours. 
14 Concern about traffic and parking displacement. 
11 Needed for reducing idling and noise. 
10 Needed for reducing car use. 
8 Needed for improving disabled access 
7 Proposed operating hours are not long enough. 
6 Proposed operating hours are too long.  
5 We also need a CPZ in this neighbourhood 
4 

for each 
comment 

Concern about access for visitors and deliveries. 
Extend zone into Bradley Road (18% of its 
respondents). 
Extend zone into The Ridge Way (17% of its 
respondents). 

3 
for each 
comment 

Make the scheme 24 hours. 
Needed for emergency vehicle access 
Needed to support access for 404 bus route 

2 
for each 
comment 

Concern about access for/to disabled or 
vulnerable person. 
Concern about future permit charges being 
introduced. 
Does not cover Saturday school at Ridgeway 
Primary. 
Extend zone to include Hook Hill. 
School should provide more off-street staff 
parking. 

1 Add advanced warning sign in Bradley Road. 

Page 60



for each 
comment 

Also reverse the one-way traffic direction in 
Haling Road. 
Can residents receive visitor passes? 
Concern there is just one pavement in rest of 
Montpelier Rd. 
Deploy more parking enforcement officers. 
Does not address Nursery School gate in Court 
Avenue. 
Don't want more enforcement cameras. 
Educate parents to walk. 
Enforcement cameras are needed. 
Extend zone in Haling Road to both Brighton 
Road junctions. 
Extend zone into Allen Road. 
Extend zone into Beaumont Road. 
Extend zone into Birchanger Road. 
Extend zone into Albert Road. 
Extend zone into whole length of Thomson 
Crescent. 
Find a lower cost solution. 
Limit school street permits to 2 per household. 
Move Coldhabour bus stop closer to school, with 
a lay-by. 
Needed for improving access to our business. 
Needed for reducing littering by waiting parents. 
Needed to reduce through-traffic in Hook Hill. 
Permit eligibility for residents in neighbouring 
roads. 
Permit eligibility for child carer, to enable a 
working mother. 
Reopen St Joseph school entrance in Convent 
Hill. 
School should ban parents from driving. 
Start scheme at Ridgeway Primary on a trial 
basis. 
Will also resolve a level of commuter parking. 
Will help reduce driving in The Ridge Way. 
Will increase my petrol costs. 
Will not stop school staff parking on-street. 

Undecided 
on a 
suggested 
scheme 
 
Total 7 
respondents 
making 17 
comments 

3 Will displace problems into neighbouring roads. 
2 Do not believe scheme will have sufficient effect.  
1  

for each 
comment 

Existing situation hurts our business (just outside 
zone). 
Needed for emergency vehicle access. 
Needed for reducing hostility and abusive 
behaviours. 
Add ANPR enforced yellow box junction at Court 
Avenue. 
Nursery children already uses Court Avenue, 
won’t stop. 
Use education and walking bus. 
Explore using off-street parking on school 
grounds. 

Page 61



Might make the neighbouring roads even more 
dangerous. 
Extend the zone to neighbouring roads. 
Waste of public money. 
Make the temporary one-way in Montpelier Road 
permanent. 
Need parking controls at bend near Montpelier 
Road T-junct. 

Separately to the individual occupier responses from within the locality, 3 
ward councillors representing non-respondents within the locality and the 
wider community have commented 
Keston 
Primary 
School  

2 Consider that the location is not a cul-de-sac. 
2 Consider impact on the 404 bus route. 
2 Court Avenue and other surrounding roads will 

become even more clogged at school times. 
2 Keston Avenue is the access road for hundreds 

of residents in the rest of Keston Avenue and 
many roads beyond. 

2 It does not discriminate between term time and 
holiday time and many innocent residents will be 
fined, or will you issue exemptions to them all? 

1 An extension into the whole of Court Avenue 
cannot be considered, because patients need to 
access the growing GP surgery at the opposite 
end of the road. 

1 When a child has a temporary medical condition, 
parents have to take them to school and need to 
be able to get close – otherwise there might be a 
safeguarding issue. 

Harris 
Academy 
Purley Way 

1 Barring parking at the school would require 
children and in some cases their younger siblings 
in lower level more pollutant exposed push chairs 
to reach the school along the higher polluted A23 
Purley Way. 

1 A scheme would have strong attractions to 
residents of Propeller Crescent. 

 
 

3.5.5 The primary concern, stated by 54% of respondents in opposition to a School 
Street, is the fear of displacement of traffic and parking problems into 
neighbouring roads. As described in section 3.3.6 above, the same concerns 
have not proven material in the existing School Street locations. 

 
Table 6 – Neighbouring roads where respondents show strong opposition. 
 

Road Respons
e rate No Yes Unsur

e Stated problems 

Court Avenue 
(Keston Primary) 

62% 
(v.high) 

97% 0% 3% Already intolerable 
pressure from 
growing residential, 
school and GP 
surgery parking. 

Ellenbridge Way 34% 86% 14% 0% 
Page 62



(Ridgeway 
Primary) 

(high) Do not want nearby 
restrictions or any 
parking displacement. 
Has not stated 
existing pressures. 

Elmfield Way 
(Ridgeway 
Primary) 

25% 
(med) 

100
% 

0% 0% 

Watcombe Road 
and Ferndale 
Road 
(Oasis Reylands) 

14% 
(low) 

77% 23% 0% Already intolerable 
pressure from 
residential and 
commuter parking. 

Euston Road 
(Kingsley Primary) 

6% 
(low) 

100
% 

0% 0% Already intolerable 
pressure from 
industrial estate 
commuter parking. 

Bradley Road 
(St Joseph 
Primary) 

33% 
(high) 

61% 39% 0% Surrounding roads 
already have complex 
one-ways to navigate. 

Birchanger Road 
(St Thomas 
Beckett) 

17% 
(low) 

83% 17% 0% Already intolerable 
pressure from school 
parking. 

 
3.5.5.1 The roads in Table 6, in which residents are in strong opposition to a 

nearby School Street, are locations where high parking pressure exists 
already. As described in the sections 3.2.1 to 3.2.4 above, such pre-
existing pressures will not lessen, but will likely worsen, unless the road 
with a school entrance becomes perceivably safer, to support parents in 
switching away from car use. The School Street will of course not 
contribute to reducing or increasing any pre-existing residential or 
commuter parking in nearby roads. Such situations must be addressed by 
other types of parking control measures. 

 
3.5.5.2 37 respondents in Court Avenue represents the single strongest 

opposition to a scheme. Respondents say there are already severe 
difficulties and they fear it will worsen. At Keston Primary school, the 75% 
of pupils live 12 minutes or less walking distance from the school. More 
than 90% of pupils live within realistic a walking distance. The last travel 
mode survey in May 2019, found that 37% of pupils are being driven to 
school by car. These figures indicate a high potential for reducing car use 
and alleviating the associated parking pressures. The School Street has 
demonstrated that it can contribute to such a car use reduction.  

 
14% of the respondents in Court Avenue say they would support a School 
Street extension that include their road. This indicates some willingness 
towards the principles of a School Street, but just not in the suggested 
location under the current circumstances. It is however not possible to 
propose a zone extension into Court Avenue, for reasons that it would 
impede patient access to the GP surgery in the road. 

 
3.5.5.3 A concern was raised that hundreds of residents east of the Keston 

Avenue junction with Court Avenue will become restricted from accessing 
Coulsdon Road, because Court Avenue and Kerrill Avenue are narrower 
roads and cannot carry the amount of traffic. This concern is mitigated by 
residents to the east Keaston Avenue additionally being able to use 
Taunton Lane and Waddington Avenue for access. 

Page 63



 
3.5.5.4 10 respondents have commented on Bradley Road being one–way from 

Crown Dale to the junction with Woodend. The road layout is shown in 
Appendix 1. The prevailing traffic direction in Bradley Road is south-
bound. The one-way in Beaumont Road prevents traffic from the south 
entering into Bradley Road. School run traffic approaching Woodend 
north-bound through Bradley Road is therefore primarily internal traffic 
and assumed very low in quantity. In reaction to feedback from 1 
respondent, it is proposed to introduce signs at the turning loop in Bradley 
Road, saying “No access to Woodend or Crown Dale, Mon-Fri, 8.00am to 
9.30am and 2.00pm to 4.00pm”, as is illustrated in Appendix 1. The 
evolving situation in Bradley Road is to be monitored (see 3.5.6.4 below) 
for ongoing consideration. 

 
3.5.5.5 Subject to a decision to implement the proposed School Streets, the roads 

identified in Table 6 would receive an initially enhanced parking 
enforcement presence, to prevent bad practices developing and becoming 
the norm while the schemes settle. 

 
3.5.6 Of the remaining comments, the same concerns have all been tolerated or 

mitigated at the existing School Street schemes. The following highlights the 
most important: 

 
3.5.6.1 Visitors and home deliveries: 

Access issues are in part mitigated by compromising the size of the 
restricted zones, where a smaller zone results in shorter and more 
tolerable walk for visitors who must park outside a zone. Care services 
and relatives of disabled and vulnerable residents within a zone will be 
eligible for an exemption permit (see Appendix 4). 

 
Trades people, such as a builder renovating a resident’s home for 
example, will be eligible for a temporary exemption to facilitate necessary 
access. 

 
Parcel and home shopping delivery operators are mostly avoiding the 
problematic school streets during the start and end of the school day 
anyway, when it is practically very difficult to access and stop for 
unloading. The impact on home deliveries is therefore considered small 
and acceptable. Exempting the delivery operators would risk encouraging 
an increase in the number of deliveries made during the restricted hours 
and it would make the freed-up School Street available as a convenient 
short-cut. 

 
Universal postal providers have a legal status that permits them accessing 
pedestrian streets. 

 
3.5.6.2 Educate or use school to instruct parents not to drive needlessly: 

As described in section 3.3.4, educational and information devices are 
already active at the schools and will continue to be used in combination 
with the School Streets. One respondent names a school in Lambeth that 
has told parents not to apply for a school place if they think they can drop 
off children in roads close to the school. The particular school is a 
secondary school and sixth form. Primary schools in Croydon would find it 

Page 64



difficult to demand similarly, when several have a policy of requiring that 
children in the youngest years are accompanied to and collected at the 
school entrance. 

 
3.5.6.3 The operational hours are too long or too short: 

The proposed operating hours are those that have proven effective at the 
pre-existing School Street schemes.  

 
3 respondent have suggested a 24-hour School Street for residents permit 
holders only, to help overcome all-day and evening parking access 
problems. Such hours would exceed the intended traffic management 
purpose of encouraging school run travel modes. It is recommended that 
residential parking access should be addressed by general parking 
management measures instead. 

 
5 schools were highlighted as having active after school clubs: Harris 
Haling Park, Keston Primary, Oasis Reylands, Ridgeway Primary and St 
Joseph’s Junior. 6 respondents have suggested extending the end time to 
4.30pm; 2 have suggested 5.00pm, 1 has suggested 5.30pm and 1 has 
suggested 6.00pm. At the same time, 17 respondents have expressed 
concerns that the proposed hours are too long. Ending the zone times 
later than 4.30pm would impede residential visitors and home deliveries 
for longer and it would potentially impede other commuter traffic. It is 
recommended to initially propose the ‘standard’ 4.00pm end times and 
then monitor and assess any learning, to determine if and where to extend 
any operating hours. 

 
3.5.6.4 Extend the zone: 

On balance of consideration of the consultation responses, it is 
recommended not to extend any of the originally suggested zones. Firstly, 
it would not accord with majority view. Secondly, more residents would, 
potentially needlessly, find difficulties in receiving visitors and deliveries 
during the times of School Street operation. 
 
18% of respondents in Bradley Road have made the request. The effect 
on Bradley Road, from a School Street in Woodend should be monitored, 
with view to reconsider a making separate engagement on extending the 
zone if future feedback suggests a bigger demand. 
 
Respondents in Birchanger Road highlights pre-existing parking 
pressures at the eastern entrance to St Thomas Becket School. A School 
Street in Birchanger Road would have to extend to the Enmore Road 
junction, which would enclose a large number of residents and potentially 
impact on essential traffic. The school entrance in Birchanger Road is 
instead being considered for alternative parking control measures, 
including a relocation of the zigzag and a small extension of double yellow 
lines, for road safety and access improvement. This is being considered 
as a separate consultation. 

 
3.5.7 At Harris Academy Purley Way, the Propeller Crescent service road has 

issues that do not relate to school run traffic and a School Street would be 
complex to implement: 

Page 65



i. The residents parking area is significantly oversubscribed and any time 
bad parking exists. The existing off-street parking control Traffic 
Management Order was introduced in 2012, prior to the new school and 
residential developments, and the TMO no longer suitably describes the 
place boundaries. This has created gaps in the enforcement capabilities. 

ii. The service road leading past the school is the sole exit route that will 
permit a right turn into Purley Way, when leaving the nearby Leisure 
Centre car park. A School Street would encourage parents to park in the 
Leisure Centre car park (which is preferred), but some would potentially 
ignore the banned right turn on exiting the car park and could obstruct 
essential traffic flows in Purley Way. 

iii. Propeller Crescent does currently not meet the highway standard (for 
turning circles and pavements) as is required for introducing an ANPR 
enforceable Traffic Management Order. The necessary upgrade works 
would have significant costs. 

iv. Residents and the school have strongly urged a solution that can be 
introduced immediately, as opposed to going through the statutory 
process that would introduce a School Street late in 2020 – or later after 
highways upgrade works. 

v. The area is a low car developments, where many residents are more 
dependent on home deliveries. The engagement produced a low 
response rate. It is conceivable that many of the non-responding car-free 
households would feel better served without a School Street. 

 
The Propeller Crescent off-street location makes the enforcement more 
flexible, in some respects, once the signage and place description is put right. 
The signage was upgraded in w/c 9 March 2020 and it has already enabled 
more effective enforcement of the school traffic parking in residents permit 
bays. If these alternative measures remain effective, then it would not be 
necessary to restrict visitors and home deliveries by introducing a School 
Street. It is therefore recommended not to proceed with a School Street in 
Propeller Crescent in the current round of schemes; but instead monitor and 
assess the impact of the alternative measures that were recently introduced. 

 
 

3.6 EXPERIMENTAL IMPLEMENTATION AND FORMAL CONSULTATION 
 

3.6.1 Two Public Notices are to be consulted on: 
 

a) Experimental TRO for new pedestrian zones in the 10 locations 
described in Appendix 1. The 6-month consultation period to open on 1 
September 2020. 
 

b) Amendment to the existing TRO for pedestrian zones in Fairfield Way, 
Dunsfold Rise and Meadow Rise as described in Appendix 2. The 21-
day consultation period to open on 1 September 2020. 

 
3.6.2 The legal process requires formal consultation in the form of Public Notices 

published in accordance with the Local Authorities' Traffic Orders (Procedure) 
(England and Wales) Regulations 1996 (SI 1996/2489) (LATOPR 1996) as 
temporarily amended by Regulation 3 of the Traffic Orders Procedure 
(Coronavirus) (Amendment) (England) Regulations 2020 (SI 2020/536) 
(TOPCR 2020). In brief it means that notices should also be given in digital 

Page 66



means. Parents will be notified about the consultation through the schools and 
notices near the schools entrances. 
 

3.6.3 Official bodies such as the Fire Brigade, the Cycling Council for Great Britain, 
The Pedestrian Association, Age UK, The Owner Drivers’ Society, The 
Confederation of Passenger Transport and bus operators are consulted under 
the terms of the Local Authorities’ Traffic Orders (Procedure) (England and 
Wales) Regulations 1996. Additional bodies are consulted depending on the 
relevance of the proposals. 
 

3.6.4 It is recommended the result of formal consultation on the Experimental TROs 
be referred back to the Traffic Management Advisory Committee for 
consideration and for advising the Cabinet Member for Transport and 
Environment (job share) on the decision whether to approve the 
implementations of the Schools Streets. The objectors will be informed of the 
decision. 
 

3.6.5 It is recommended for expedience in the Covid-19 response that The 
Executive Director Place uses delegate authority to implement the amended 
TRO for the changed hours of operation for the pre-existing pedestrian zones 
in Fairfield Way, Dunsfold Rise and Meadow Rise, subject to the consultation 
receiving any significant and potentially controversial objections.  
 

3.7 PRIVACY AND DATA PROTECTION 
 

3.7.1 The informal consultation letter described to residents and occupiers how the 
proposed School Street would be enforced using ANPR cameras, further 
explaining that the camera will focus strictly on the traffic entry point to the 
street. The ANPR camera cannot be turned or used for any other purpose, 
such as for spying or recording anti-social behaviour. Recordings are 
triggered solely on the detection and for the duration of a driving 
contravention.  
 

3.7.2 ANPR is widely used in Croydon and beyond and are proven to feasibly 
operate within the Surveillance Commissioners Codes of Practice. Every 
individual ANPR camera will require a Data Protection Impact Assessment 
(DPIA) to ensure its compliance. Subject to the schemes final approval, the 
assessments will be made prior to the cameras being switch on to collect 
images. 

 
  

Page 67



 
4 FINANCIAL AND RISK ASSESSMENT CONSIDERATIONS 

 
1 Revenue and Capital consequences of report recommendations  
 

  Current year  Medium Term Financial Strategy – 3 year 
forecast 

  2020/21  2021/22  2022/23  2023/24 
           £’000  £’000  £’000  £’000 
         Revenue Budget 
available 

        

Expenditure  95  259  259  259 
Income  (366)  (1,267)  (1,267)  (1,267) 
Effect of decision 
from report 

        

Expenditure  130  259  259  259 
Income  (528)  (1,267)  (1,267)  (1,267) 
         Remaining budget  (127)  0  0  0 
         Capital Budget 
available 

        

Expenditure  499  0  0  0 
Effect of decision 
from report 

        

Expenditure   499   0  0    0 
         Remaining budget  0  0   0   0  

 

2        The effect of the decision 
The implementation and operation of the 10 new School Streets is budgeted 
for. The established budget also has provision for performing the required 
consultations. The original plan was to stagger the start of the 10 schemes 
between September 2020 and January 2021. Starting all 10 schemes in 
September 2020 instead has a revenue effect of (127k). 
 
3         Risks 
School Street compliance will change over time. PCN revenue has reduced 
34% at the original pilot sites, over 18 months (i.e. revenue is continually 
reducing). The schemes however remain self-financing and brings important 
value through their road safety and air quality objectives. To mitigate the 
forecast risk, the (528k) income in year 2020/21 has cautiously assumed an 
immediate 34% compliance effect. 
 

4        Financial options  

Substituting the School Street scheme with an elevated physical enforcement 
presence by Civil Enforcement Officers and using the CCTV smart car to 
enforce the school zigzag would be more resource demanding and less 
effective – i.e. is financially less efficient. 
 

Page 68



 5      Future savings/efficiencies 

ANPR cameras are a less resource demanding, more efficient approach to 
traffic enforcement. The average operational cost per enforcement action will 
become lower from introducing ANPR camera schemes, such as at School 
Streets.  

 

6 Approved by Felicia Wright, Head of Finance on behalf of the Director of 
Finance, Investment and Risk and S151 Officer 

 
 
 
5 LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS 

 
5.1 The Head of Litigation and Corporate Law comments on behalf of the Director 

of Law and Governance & Deputy Monitoring Officer that on 23 May 2020, the 
Department for Transport (DfT) made and brought into force the Traffic 
Orders Procedure (Coronavirus) (Amendment) (England) Regulations 2020 
(SI 2020/536) (TOPCR 2020). The TOPCR 2020 makes temporary 
amendments to the Local Authorities' Traffic Orders (Procedure) (England and 
Wales) Regulations 1996 (SI 1996/2489) (LATOPR 1996). This includes the 
insertion of "Temporary Provisions Applicable During the Coronavirus 
Pandemic". This establishes alternative publication requirements, which a 
local authority can adopt where it is required to publish a notice in a 
newspaper and the authority considers that it would not be reasonably 
practicable to do so because of the effects of coronavirus, including the 
restrictions on movement.  

 
5.2 The LATOPR 1996 establish the procedures for making a traffic regulation 

order, (including an Experimental Traffic Regulation Order). The procedural 
provisions for Experimental Traffic Regulation Orders are set out in 
regulations 22 and 23 and Schedule 5 to the LATOPR 1996. It identifies the 
requirements of “the giving of appropriate notices” and the receiving of 
representations. Such representations must be considered by the members 
before a final decision is made.  
 

5.3 If the proposals progress to decision, by virtue of section 122 of the RTRA, 
the Council must exercise its powers under that Act so as to secure the 
expeditious, convenient and safe movement of vehicular and other traffic 
including pedestrians, and the provision of suitable and adequate parking 
facilities on and off the highway having regard to: 
 
• The desirability of securing and maintaining reasonable access to 

premises; 
• The effect on the amenities of any locality affected and the importance of 

regulating and restricting the use of roads by heavy commercial vehicles, 
so as to preserve or improve the amenities of the areas through which the 
roads run; 

• The national air quality strategy; 
• The importance of facilitating the passage of public service vehicles and 

of securing the safety and convenience of persons using or desiring to 
use such vehicles; and 

Page 69



• Any other matters appearing to the local authority to be relevant. 
 
5.3 Recent High Court authority confirms that the Council must have proper 

regard to the matters set out at s 122(1) and (2) and specifically document 
its analysis of all relevant section 122 considerations  when reaching any 
decision. 

5.4 Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 sets out the new public sector equality 
duty replacing the previous duties in relation to race, sex and disability and 
extending the duty to all the protected characteristics i.e. race, sex, disability, 
age, sexual orientation, religion or belief, pregnancy or maternity, marriage 
or civil partnership and gender reassignment. The public sector equality duty 
requires public authorities to have due regard to the need to: 

• Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation 
• Advance equality of opportunity and 
• Foster good relations between those who share a protected 

characteristic and those who do not. 

5.5 Part of the duty to have “due regard” where there is disproportionate impact 
will be to take steps to mitigate the impact and the Council must demonstrate 
that this has been done, and/or justify the decision, on the basis that it is a 
proportionate means of achieving a legitimate aim. Accordingly, there is an 
expectation that a decision maker will explore other means which have less 
of a disproportionate impact. 

5.6 The Equality Duty must be complied with before and at the time that a 
particular policy is under consideration or decision is taken – that is, in the 
development of policy options, and in making a final decision. A public body 
cannot satisfy the Equality Duty by justifying a decision after it has been 
taken. 

5.7 Where ANPR is used, the Council must ensure it adheres to the Surveillance 
Commissioner Guidance and Information Commissioner Guidance, where 
appropriate. 

Approved by Sandra Herbert, Head of Litigation and Corporate Law on 
behalf of the Director of Law and Governance & Deputy Monitoring Officer. 

 
 

6 HUMAN RESOURCES IMPACT 
 

6.1 The operation of 10 additional School Street zones will require increased 
permit administration, enforcement duties and Penalty Charge Notice 
processing. The human resources impact is provided for in the planned 
budget and establishment. In addition any HR issues which arise other than in 
the planned budget and establishment will be managed under the Council’s 
policies and procedures. 
 
Approved by: Jennifer Sankar, Head of HR for and behalf of Sue Moorman, 
HR Director 
 
 

Page 70



7 EQUALITIES IMPACT 
 

7.1 The Equality Act 2010 introduced the Public Sector Equality Duty. This 
requires all public bodies, including local authorities, to have due regard to the 
need to: 
• Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other 

conduct prohibited by the Act. 
• Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected 

characteristic and those who do not. 
• Foster good relations between people who share a protected 

characteristic and those who do not. 
 

7.2 The Equalities Impact Assessment (EqIA) is contained in the EqIA for the 
Parking Policy8, which has a section on School Streets. This EqIA was last 
reviewed on 28 August 2019. The School Streets operational concept is 
unchanged since. Feedback from the present engagement has not raised any 
new or emerging equalities issues. Practical experiences of operating 3 
School Streets since 2017 and introducing a further 8 in 2019/20 has been 
applied to the proposed experiment to ensure lessons learned are reflected in 
its operation. All potential equality risks have been mitigated.  Should the 
proposed experiment prove successful a full and extensive EqIA review will 
be written into the project plan as part of any long term changes to the 
operational methods or in response to any feedback of concern. 
 

7.3 Concern raised during engagement about reduced access to disabled and 
elderly frail residents is mitigated by making the motor vehicles belonging to 
the following groups of drivers eligible for an exemption permit, to allow the 
use of suitable vehicles in the School Street during the hours of operation:  
 
a) Schools buses and vehicles used in the transport of children and adults 

with special access needs, including private vehicles, taxies and 
minicabs declared for such use. The school may also request a 
temporary permit to enable car access for, say, a parent in a later stage 
of pregnancy or child with a temporary injury affecting mobility. 

b) Essential health and care visitors, including relatives of residents 
belonging to a group with relevant protected characteristics. This is 
extended to enabling child care and preventing elder isolation, for 
example. 

Motor vehicles belonging to the following groups and situations are 
automatically permitted to drive in a School Street, without first obtaining an 
exemption permit and this will not change during the experimental period: 

c) Emergency services. 
d) Statutory Undertakers. 
e) Local Authority in pursuance of statutory powers, including social work. 
f) Exemptions stated in the Highway Code, such as a medical emergency 

or with the permission or at the direction of a police officer. 
 

7.4 The School Street proposal has the added advantage of helping to improve 
access for disabled/vulnerable people, by eliminating congestion and bad 
parking practices at peak periods during the day. The scheme also supports 

Page 71



the Council’s aspiration to reduce air pollution, which disproportionately 
impacts on the sick, young and elderly, and their general health outcomes. 
 
Approved by: Barbara Grant on behalf of Yvonne Okiyo, Equalities Manager 

 
8 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 

 
8.1 The School Street schemes are expected to reduce car use, which in turn will 

contribute to reducing congestion and air pollution in a wider area.  
 

8.2 The zone signs are designed to meet the Department for Transport 
specification and will naturally fit the street scheme. The addition of signs and 
cameras within the public realm is compensated for by reducing the visual 
impact of congested traffic and parking. 
 
 

9 CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPACT 
 

9.1 Hostile behaviours are presently daily occurrences experienced by driving 
parents, other road users, school staff, residents and parking enforcement 
officers. The disorderly behaviours can be intimidating and sets a bad 
example to children. The School Street schemes can significantly reduce and 
disperse such disorder away from the school entrance where a concentration 
of children exists. 
 
 

10 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS/PROPOSED DECISION 
 

10.1 The Council has reviewed and tried various options to reduce parking stress 
and improve safety around schools. The School Street pilots have been 
successful as described in this report so the recommendation is to introduce 
more such schemes where appropriate and in agreement. 
 
 

11 OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 
 

11.1 The alternative option of not proceeding with the recommended formal 
consultation would not accord with the expressed preference of the majority of 
those who live within the proposed School Street zones. It would also be a 
missed opportunity to relieve children, parents and residents from obstruction, 
road safety, air quality and inactivity problems resulting from traffic and 
parking. 
 

11.2 Increasing the conventional presence of Civil Enforcement Officers (CEOs) at 
peak times, as an alternative to the School Street, are demonstrated to be 
insufficient in resolving the chaotic and, at times, hostile traffic conditions, 
which occurs in the space where children and cars co-exist. CEOs do not 
have powers to direct or enforce traffic with regards to resolving congestion 
and discouraging car use. The lower financial efficiency of deploying CEOs 
also makes this option less affordable in the longer term. It is practically 
impossible to provide a daily presence at each the 130 schools in the 
borough. 

Page 72



 
11.3 The Council, and the London Mayor’s office, are already working with schools 

and parents in other ways to encourage less car use; but nothing has yet 
emerged as equally effective as the combination School Street, in helping to 
reverse the trend of the many more children being driven to school. 

 

 

CONTACT OFFICER:  Sarah Randall, Head of Parking, Extension 60814 

 

APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT 

Appendix 1 – Drawings and particulars of the 11 proposed School Street schemes. 

Appendix 2 – Drawing and amendment particulars of 1 pre-existing School Street. 

Appendix 3 – Schools’ catchment areas. 

Appendix 4 – Method for operating a Schools Street. 

Appendix 5 – Analysis of consultation questionnaires by individual schools. 

Appendix 6 – Copy of informal engagement letter. 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS: 

1. https://www.croydon.gov.uk/transportandstreets/policies  
2. https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/reallocating-road-space-in-

response-to-covid-19-statutory-guidance-for-local-authorities/traffic-
management-act-2004-network-management-in-response-to-covid-19 

3. https://tfl.gov.uk/travel-information/improvements-and-
projects/streetspace-for-london  

4. https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploa
ds/attachment_data/file/716075/vehicle-licensing-statistics-2017-
revised.pdf 

5. https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandm
arriages/livebirths/bulletins/birthsummarytablesenglandandwales/2017  

6. https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S0048969701007586  
7. https://www.mumsforlungs.org/resources  
8. https://democracy.croydon.gov.uk/documents/s17358/Equality%20Analysi

s%20V3.pdf  

Page 73

https://www.croydon.gov.uk/transportandstreets/policies
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/reallocating-road-space-in-response-to-covid-19-statutory-guidance-for-local-authorities/traffic-management-act-2004-network-management-in-response-to-covid-19
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/reallocating-road-space-in-response-to-covid-19-statutory-guidance-for-local-authorities/traffic-management-act-2004-network-management-in-response-to-covid-19
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/reallocating-road-space-in-response-to-covid-19-statutory-guidance-for-local-authorities/traffic-management-act-2004-network-management-in-response-to-covid-19
https://tfl.gov.uk/travel-information/improvements-and-projects/streetspace-for-london
https://tfl.gov.uk/travel-information/improvements-and-projects/streetspace-for-london
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/716075/vehicle-licensing-statistics-2017-revised.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/716075/vehicle-licensing-statistics-2017-revised.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/716075/vehicle-licensing-statistics-2017-revised.pdf
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/livebirths/bulletins/birthsummarytablesenglandandwales/2017
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/livebirths/bulletins/birthsummarytablesenglandandwales/2017
https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S0048969701007586
https://www.mumsforlungs.org/resources
https://democracy.croydon.gov.uk/documents/s17358/Equality%20Analysis%20V3.pdf
https://democracy.croydon.gov.uk/documents/s17358/Equality%20Analysis%20V3.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1 

Christ Church CofE Primary School, CR8 2QE 

  

Page 75



Downsview Primary School, SE19 3XE 

 

  

Page 76



Ecclesbourne Primary School, CR7 7FA 

 

  

Page 77



Harris Academy Purley Way, CR0 4FE 

NOT RECOMMENDED 

 

 

  

Page 78



Harris Primary Academy Hailing Park, CR2 6HS 

 

  

Page 79



Keston Primary School, CR5 1HP 

 

  

Page 80



Kingsley Primary Academy, CR0 3JT 

 

  

Page 81



Oasis Academy Reylands, SE25 4XG 

 

  

Page 82



Ridgeway Primary School, CR2 0EQ 

 

  

Page 83



St Thomas Becket Catholic Primary, SE25 5BN 

 

  

Page 84



St. Joseph’s Catholic Junior School, SE19 3NU 

 

  

Page 85



APPENDIX 2 

Woodcote Primary and High Schools, amended operational hours at existing scheme 

  

Page 86



APPENDIX 3 

Heat-maps of school catchment areas. The red areas show the highest concentration of pupils, 
whilst orange indicates that fewer students live there. The rings represents the 25, 50, 75 
percentiles and the average (blue ring) distance areas. Maps are not to scale.  

The maps are obtained from https://maps.london.gov.uk/schools/, which also has a tool for 
mapping the walking, cycling and driving times. There is no data available for the newly opened 
Harris Academy Purley Way and only partial data is available for Harris Academy Hailing Park. 

 
75% of pupils live within approx. 12min walking 
distance 
 

 
75% of pupils live within approx. 11min walking 
distance 
 
 

 
75% of pupils live within approx. 13min walking 
distance 
 

 
Distance data not available. The larger red area 
(highest concentration of pupils) is within 7min 
walk. The second smaller red area is 12min walk. 
 

 
75% of pupils live within approx. 12min walking 
distance. 
 

 
75% of pupils live within approx. 11min walking 
distance. 
 

Page 87

https://maps.london.gov.uk/schools/


 
75% of pupils live within approx. 11min walking 
distance. 
 
 

 
75% of pupils live within approx. 15min walking 
distance. 
 

 
75% of pupils live within approx. 16min walking 
distance. 
 

 
75% of pupils live within approx. 20min walking 
distance. 
 

 

 

   

Page 88



APPENDIX 4 

 

OPERATION OF A SCHOOL STREET 
 

   
 

The road signs and camera position at the entrance to the School Street. 
 
Motor vehicles belonging to the following groups of drivers are eligible for an exemption permit, 
to enable them driving in the School Street during the hours of operation: 

 
a) Occupier within the zone, with a registered vehicle or a hire, company or courtesy car 

agreement. 
b) Vehicles used in the transport of children and adults with special access needs, including 

private vehicles, taxies and minicabs declared for such use. 
c) Business and school employees with allocated parking on their premises inside the zone.  
d) Essential health and care visitors, including relatives of residents with care needs. 
e) All day commercial operators, such as builders, decorators and heavy goods suppliers, are 

eligible for a temporary permit covering the duration of their necessary activities. 
 

The exemption permit is simply an electronic record in the compliance system and there is no 
need to physically affix anything to a vehicle. The permit is currently free (£0.00) and requested 
by email. It is envisaged to eventually create an online exemption system with automated DVLA 
VQ5 validation, as opposed to manually processing emails, but this development is not yet 
justifiable for the relatively low number of exemptions in place and unconfirmed final number of 
School Streets. 

 
Motor vehicles belonging to the following groups and situations are automatically permitted to 
drive in a School Street, without first obtaining an exemption permit: 

 
f) Emergency services. 
g) Statutory public services, such as gas/electricity companies and refuse collectors. 
h) Public transport busses (where on a bus route). 
i) Universal postal service providers, such as the Royal Mail. 
j) Breakdown and recovery vehicles (the so called 4th emergency service). 
k) Exemptions stated in the Highway Code, such as at the direction of a police officer. 

 
Other drivers who wish to access the School Street must arrive outside the hours of operation, 
or they can temporarily park outside the zone and then move the vehicle once the restrictions 
end. The vehicles that are not eligible for a permit notably include those of: 

 
a) General visitors to residents and businesses. 
b) Home deliveries. 
c) Employees and school staff without on-premises parking (the scheme is not intended to 

free up the road to substitute for workplace parking).  
 

 

Page 89



A traffic camera with automatic number plate recognition (ANPR) and a contravention detection 
algorithm will operate during the controlled hours. To prevent false triggers and to permit a 
driver correcting a turning mistake, the alleged contravention trigger point is a small distance 
into the road. A qualified CCTV Enforcement Officer (CEO) will review a video recording of the 
context in which an alleged contravention has occurred and verify a picture of a driving car’s 
registration number against the exemptions list. The CEO can issue a £130 Penalty Charge 
Notice (discounted to £65 if paid within 14 days) to the registered keeper of a vehicle that drives 
into the road without a valid exemption or reason. The penalty charge is set by a London-wide 
authority, to reflect a level deemed necessary in deterring driving contraventions and which is 
consistent with a requirement on the local authority to charge to recover the costs of 
implementing and operating such a scheme. 
 
The fixed position ANPR camera is type approved by the Department for Transport and will 
focus strictly on the traffic entry point to the street. It cannot be turned or used for any other 
purpose, such as for observing private individuals or recording anti-social behaviour. 
 
Operational procedures and enforcement assessment guidance are defined to help assure 
fairness: 
 
• The compliance enforcement system is operated during school term time only and can 

include insert days that differs between the schools. 
 

• To assure the triggering of a single enforcement action per driving contravention, the ANPR 
camera enforcement system is set to focus on vehicles driving into the zone. For example, 
a driver will not receive a second penalty charge notice when leaving the zone, several 
hours or days after entry. 

 
There is no provision in traffic signs regulations for displaying the above two operating 
procedures; nor would it be workable to advertise them and consider representations on the 
basis of what a driver may or may not have perceived. For example, if a sign was to say “on 
schools days only”, then a driver could rightly make representation on grounds that there is no 
information to indicate whether the particular day is a school day or not. It might also result in 
disputes over the number of children that were visibly present in the street at the time. The 
system would risk falling into disrepute and becoming unenforceable. 
 
To fairly enable drivers realising the changing conditions in the street and to give them the 
opportunity to find another mode or route of travel, the scheme would not be enforced during its 
first month of operation. Instead, CEOs will show an advisory presence in the street and the 
surrounding area. Drivers will subsequently have the right to appeal any penalty, stating a 
legally valid reason for driving in the School Street. 
  

Page 90



APPENDIX 5 

Responses data from informal consultation 

  

Page 91



APPENDIX 6 

 

 

 Parking Services 
 P O Box 1462 
 Croydon 
 CR9 1WX 
 Tel/Typetalk: 020 8726 6000 
 Minicom: 020 8760 5797 
The Occupier 
«Address1» 
«Address2» 
«Address3» 
«Address4» 
 
Important Traffic and Parking Questionnaire 

  
 Contact: Parking Services 
 frede.jensen@croydon.gov.uk 
 Tel: 020 8726 6000, ext 88003 
 Our Ref: PS/FJ/P781 
 Date:  5 February 2020 

 

 
 

Dear Occupier, 

Possible School Street scheme in Montpelier Road 

I am writing to ask for your views on the possibility of introducing a School Street scheme 
in Montpelier Road later in 2020. 

It is suggested to designate the street a pedestrian and cyclist zone at the start and end 
of school days, as it is shown in the enclosed drawing. Residents and occupiers within 
the zone would become eligible for an exemption permit, to enable them drive in the road 
unhindered at any time. 

The feedback you provide in response to this informal engagement will assist the decision 
whether to develop a formal proposal for a statutory public consultation. Your views are 
important and we would be grateful if you could respond to the attached questions by 
email to schoolparking@croydon.gov.uk or by post to the above address by 
Wednesday 26th February 2020. 

Before completing the questionnaire you may wish to look at the enclosed Frequently 
Asked Questions sheet. 

Please let me know if you require further information or clarification. 

Yours faithfully, 

 
 
Frede Jensen 
Project Manager 

Page 92



  

Page 93



 

 

Please ensure you complete and return this questionnaire by email or post to 
reach us by Wednesday 26th February 2020.  

You may scan or photo/picture copy as an attachment or simply write an email in 
equivalent statements (without attaching this questionnaire). 

Name* …………………………………………………………………………………. 

Address* …………………………………………………………………………………. 

* Without this information your views will not be counted. This information will be used 
only for the purpose of validating this consultation. One response per household. 

 

Are you in favour of introducing a School Street as shown in the drawing?   

Please choose one option only by putting an ‘X’ in the appropriate box. 
 

 Yes, traffic restriction at start and end of school day is needed  
    

No, traffic restriction at start and end of school day is not needed  
  

Whether you answered ‘Yes’ or ‘No’ above, please provide any comments that you wish 
to contribute to the decision process for developing a proposal for the suggested 
scheme. Continue on the reverse if necessary. 

Comments: 
 

 
  

School Street Consultation – QUESTIONNAIRE – Montpelier Road 
 

 

Page 94



 
1. What is a School Street? 

In present context, it is a street with a school entrance, which is restricted to use by 
pedestrians and cyclists, with most motor vehicle traffic prohibited, between the hours of 
08:00 to 09:30 and 14:00 to 16:00 on weekdays. In accordance with the Highway Code 
for the School Street signs, the restriction applies to the act of driving into the road during 
the stated hours. Vehicles arriving outside these hours will be permitted to remain parked 
in the road and can drive out of the road at any time. In practice, the restrictions are not 
enforced during school holidays. Exempted vehicles can drive in the road at all times. 

2. Why is the Council considering this? 
The School Street is proposed, firstly, in response to requests for something to be done 
about obstruction, safety and air pollution concerns from the high volume of traffic and 
parking at school times. Many journeys previously considered easy walkable are 
increasingly made by car. The London Mayor has made it an overarching policy that all 
local Councils must encourage children and parents to use cars less and to walk, cycle 
and use public transport more. This is supported by reducing the amounts of traffic and 
parking near to the school entrance. The opening of a School Street will coincide with 
additional road safety and travel training for children at the school, and information to 
parents. 

3. What have people reported from similar schemes in other places? 
 The Council introduced the first School Street schemes in 2017. Follow-up surveys show 

that the schools and residents inside the zones remain in favour of the schemes and that 
significantly more children now walk to school. Concerns have been raised about the 
displacement of the residual car travel, with some school children now being dropped-off 
and picked-up in neighbouring roads. This effect is reduced in amount and is dispersed 
over a wider area. School parents have needed time to become influenced and find 
alternative arrangements to their usual car journey. 

4. What is the difference between informal engagement and statutory consultation? 
The Council engineers have already assessed that the requested School Street scheme 
might be feasible. The current informal stage of engagement is intended to gauge the 
first-hand opinions of people who reside within and immediately outside the proposed 
zone, to help decide upon and design a proposal in more detail. The Traffic Management 
Advisory Committee (TMAC) of elected councillors will then review the detailed proposal, 
together with the opinions in support and in opposition to the scheme. 

If it is agreed to proceed further, a subsequent formal stage of consultation is conducted 
in accordance with the legal obligation on the Council to issue a statutory Public Notice 
and to allow a time for receiving objections from the wider public and public services 
authorities. The outcome of a statutory consultation is reported back to the TMAC for final 
consideration, before a scheme is finally decided upon. 

5. Where will the scheme operate? 
It is presently suggested to place signs at the entrance to the School Street as is shown 
on the associated drawing. The current engagement is open to comments or petitions for 
changes to this suggestion. Beware, it would only be possible to establish zone start and 

School Street – Frequently Asked Questions 
 

Page 95



end points at appropriate road junctions, to present drivers with a realistic opportunity to 
select an alternative route and to avoid leading them into a road where they would be 
forced to make difficult and potentially hazardous U-turns. 

6. What if I need to drive my car in the street during the restricted hours? 
Motor vehicles belonging to the following groups of drivers are eligible for an exemption 
permit, to enable them driving into the School Street during the hours of operation: 
• Occupier within the zone, with a registered vehicle or a hire, company or courtesy car 

agreement. 
• Vehicles used in the transport of children and adults with special access needs, 

including private vehicles, taxies and minicabs declared for such use. 
• Business and school employees with allocated parking on their premises inside the 

zone.  
• Essential health and care visitors, including relatives of residents with care needs. 
• All day commercial operators, such as builders, decorators and heavy goods suppliers, 

are eligible for a temporary permit covering the duration of their necessary activities 
inside the zone. 

The exemption permit is simply an electronic record in the compliance system and there 
is no need to physically affix anything to a vehicle. 

Motor vehicles belonging to the following groups and situations are automatically 
permitted to drive in a School Street, without first obtaining an exemption permit: 
• Emergency services. 
• Statutory public services, such as gas/electricity companies and refuse collectors. 
• Universal postal service providers, such as the Royal Mail. 
• Breakdown and recovery vehicles (the so called 4th emergency service). 
• Exemptions stated in the Highway Code, such as at the direction of a police officer. 

 
7. What about our visitors? 

Other drivers who wish to access the School Street must arrive outside the hours of 
operation, or they can temporarily park outside the zone and then move the vehicle once 
the restrictions end. The vehicles that are not eligible for a permit notably include those 
of: 
• General visitors to residents and businesses. 
• Home deliveries. 
• Business and school employees without access to on-premises parking (the scheme 

is not intended to free up the road to substitute for workplace parking). It is 
pragmatically accepted that on-site parking facilities may occasionally create an over-
spill into the public road. 

8. How much will an exemption permit cost? 
 The permit is free (£0.00) and requested by email to schoolparking@croydon.gov.uk. 

9. Can you guarantee me a parking space outside my house? 
 It is not possible to guarantee anyone a particular space on the public highway. 

10. How can it be ensured that motorists driving in the School Street zone are entitled? 
A traffic camera with automatic number plate recognition (ANPR) and a contravention 
detection algorithm will operate during the controlled hours. To prevent false triggers and 

Page 96

mailto:schoolparking@croydon.gov.uk


to permit a driver correcting a turning mistake, the alleged contravention trigger point is a 
small distance into the road. The Penalty Charge Notice is £130 (discounted to £65 if paid 
within 14 days) and issued to the registered keeper of a vehicle. This penalty charge is 
set by a London-wide authority, to reflect a level deemed necessary in deterring driving 
contraventions. Drivers have the right to appeal any penalty, stating a legally valid reason 
for driving in the School Street. 

 To fairly enable drivers realising the changing conditions in the street and to give them 
the opportunity to find another mode or route of travel, the scheme would not be enforced 
during its first month of operation. Parking enforcement officers would show heightened 
presence in the surrounding area. 

11. What about my privacy when using the street? 
Every individual ANPR camera has a Privacy Data Protection Impact Assessment (DPIA), 
which is registered with the Information Commissioner’s Office. The fixed position ANPR 
camera is type approved by the Department for Transport and operates within the 
Surveillance Commissioners Codes of Practice. The ANPR camera is operated in a way 
that does not constitute surveillance and does not interfere with rights granted under the 
European Convention on Human Rights (ECHR). The camera focuses strictly on the 
traffic entry point to the street. It only uploads a short recording when a driving 
contravention is detected. All permitted traffic movements are not registered or recorded. 
The camera cannot be turned or used for any observation purpose. 

12. What if I do not support the introduction of a School Street? 
Tick the ‘No’ box on the enclosed questionnaire. If the school and the majority of residents 
in the road are against a scheme then it is unlikely to go ahead. It would be helpful if you 
stated why you oppose the proposal. If the majority is in favour of a scheme then there 
may still be opportunity to make amendments and address any concerns. If it is decided 
to proceed and develop a formal proposal, then there will be opportunity to object with 
comments to this formal proposals at a later Public Notice stage. 

 

Page 97



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	5 Croydon (West Permit Area) CPZ - Objections to the Proposed Extension in Sussex Road & Sunny Nook Gardens
	13. OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED
	1b Proposed Extension of Croydon (West Permit Area) CPZ - PD 398a

	6 Cheyne Walk Area - Objections to the Proposed Extension of the Free Parking Zone
	13. OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED
	2b HWYPSPD-040401 Cheyne Walk area informal consultation plan
	Sheets and Views
	Cheyne walk-Layout10


	2c PD-420 Cheyne Walk area

	7 Dunheved Roads Area - Objections to the Proposed Extension of the North Permit Zone
	13. OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED
	3b PD-421a Dunheved Road South area
	3c PD-421b Dunheved Road South area loading bay amendment

	8 School Streets
	4b TMAC_20200708_School Streets_appendices
	Possible School Street scheme in Montpelier Road
	Please ensure you complete and return this questionnaire by email or post to reach us by Wednesday 26th February 2020.
	You may scan or photo/picture copy as an attachment or simply write an email in equivalent statements (without attaching this questionnaire).
	Comments:


	School Street Consultation – QUESTIONNAIRE – Montpelier Road



